ABSTRACT BOOK

IV International Conference on Mathematics and Its Applications in Science and Engineering (ICMASE 2023)

> 12-14 July 2023, U-tad Madrid / SPAIN

IV International Conference on Mathematics and its Applications in Science and Engineering

ICMASE 2023



12 - 14 JULY

 U-tad, Centro Universitario de Tecnología y Arte Digital Las Rozas de Madrid, Madrid, Spain



(J)

info@icmase.comwww.icmase.com







0

Preface

This abstract booklet includes the abstracts of the papers that have been presented at IV International Conference on Mathematics and its Applications in Science and Engineering (ICMASE 2023) which was held in U-tad (University Center for Technology and Digital Art), Spain between 12-14 July, 2023, via hybrid. The aim of this conference is to exchange ideas, discuss developments in mathematics, develop collaborations and interact with professionals and researchers from all over the world about some of the following interesting topics: Functional Analysis, Approximation Theory, Real Analysis, Complex Analysis, Harmonic and non-Harmonic Analysis, Applied Analysis, Numerical Analysis, Geometry, Topology and Algebra, Modern Methods in Summability and Approximation, Operator Theory, Fixed Point Theory and Applications, Sequence Spaces and Matrix Transformation, Modern Methods in Summability and Approximation, Spectral Theory and Diferantial Operators, Boundary Value Problems, Ordinary and Partial Differential Equations, Discontinuous Differential Equations, Convex Analysis and its Applications, Optimization and its Application, Mathematics Education, Applications on Variable Exponent Lebesgue Spaces, Applications on Differential Equations and Partial Differential Equations, Fourier Analysis, Wavelet and Harmonic Analysis Methods in Function Spaces, Applications on Computer Engineering, and Flow Dynamics. However, the talks are not restricted to these subjects.

Thanks to all committee members.

We wish everyone a fruitful conference and pleasant memories from ICMASE 2023.

Prof. Dr. Víctor GAYOSO MARTÍNEZ, Prof. Dr. Fatih YILMAZ Chairs, ICMASE 2023

IV International Conference on Mathematics and Its Applications in Science and Engineering (ICMASE 2023)

12-14 July 2023, U-tad (University Center for Technology and Digital Art)

Organizing Committee

Víctor GAYOSO MARTÍNEZ, U-tad, (Spain) (Conference Chair)
Fatih YILMAZ, Ankara Hacı Bayram Veli University, (Turkey) (Organizing Chair)
Araceli QUEIRUGA-DIOS, Salamanca University, (Spain)
Deolinda RASTEIRO, Coimbra Engineering Institute-ISEC, (Portugal)
Ion MIERLUS-MAZILU, Technical University of Civil Engineering Bucharest, (Romania)
Jesús MARTIN-VAQUERO, Salamanca University, (Spain)
Mustafa ÖZKAN, Gazi University, (Turkey)
Mücahit AKBIYIK, Beykent University, (Turkey)

Invited Speakers

Miguel Ángel GONZÁLEZ DE LA TORRE, Spanish National Research Council (CSIC), (Spain) Tomohiro SOGABE, Nagoya University, (Japan) Ángel MARTÍN DEL REY, University of Salamanca, (Spain)

Local Organizing Committee

María del Mar ANGULO MARTÍNEZ, U-tad, (Spain) Beatriz MARTÍNEZ PABÓN, U-tad, (Spain) Miguel Ángel MUÑOZ MOHEDANO, U-tad, (Spain)

Scientific Committee

Agustín MARTÍN MUÑOZ, Spanish National Research Council, (Spain) Abdullah ALAZEMI, Kuwait University, (Kuwait) Ángel MARTÍN DEL REY, University of Salamanca, (Spain) Ascensión HERNÁNDEZ ENCINAS, University of Salamanca, (Spain) Ayman BADAWI, American University of Sharjah, (UAE)

- Carlos Martins da FONSECA, Kuwait College of Science and Technology, (Kuwait)
- Cesar Benavente-PECES, Technical University of Madrid, (Spain)
- Cristina R. M. CARIDADE, Instituto Superior de Engenharia de Coimbra, (Portugal)
- Daniela RICHTARIKOVA, Slovak University of Technology in Bratislava, (Slovakia)
- Daniela VELICHOVA, Slovak University of Technology, (Slovakia)
- Dolores QUEIRUGA, Universidad de La Rioja (Spain)
- Dursun TAŞÇI, Gazi University, (Turkey)
- Emília BIGOTTE, Instituto Superior de Engenharia de Coimbra, (Portugal)
- Gheorghe MOROSANU, Babes-Bolyai University, (Romania)
- Ji-Teng JIA, Xidian University, (China)
- Juan José Bullón PÉREZ, University of Salamanca, (Spain)
- Judit García FERRERO, University of Salamanca, (Spain)
- Lucian NITA, Technical University of Civil Engineering Bucharest, (Romania)
- Luis HERNÁNDEZ ÁLVAREZ, Spanish National Research Council, (Spain)
- Luis HERNÁNDEZ ENCINAS, Spanish National Research Council, (Spain)
- Marie DEMLOVA, Czech Technical University in Prague, (Czech Republic)
- María José CÁCERES GARCÍA, University of Salamanca, (Spain)
- Melek SOFYALIOĞLU, Ankara Hacı Bayram Veli University, (Turkey)
- Michael CARR, Technological University Dublin, (Ireland)
- Milica ANDJELIC, Kuwait University, (Kuwait)
- Miguel Ángel González la TORRE, Spanish National Research Council (Spain)
- Miguel Ángel QUEIRUGA-DIOS, Universidad de Burgos, (Spain)
- Moawwad El-Mikkawy, Mansoura University, (Eqypt)
- Nenad P. CAKIC, University of Belgrade, (Serbia)
- Samet ARPACI, Ankara Hacı Bayram Veli University, (Turkey)
- Seda Yamaç AKBIYIK, Gelişim University, (Turkey)
- Selçuk OZCAN, Karabuk University, (Turkey)
- Serpil HALICI, Pamukkale University, (Turkey)

IV. International Conference on Mathematics and Its Applications in Science and Engineering (ICMASE 2023)

Snezhana GOCHEVA-ILIEVA, University of Plovdiv Paisii Hilendarski, (Bulgaria)
Tomohiro SOGABE, Nagoya University, (Japan)
Said BROUMI, Regional Centre of Education and Training, (Morocco)
Hari M. SRIVASTAVA, University of Victoria, (Canada)
Yonggui KAO, Harbin Institute of Technology, (China)

Contents

1. INVITED TALKS	1
Applicability of AI to Cryptographic Algorithms	2
MIGUEL ÁNGEL GONZÁLEZ DE LA TORRE	
Recent Developments in Computing Matrix Functions with the Double Exponential formulas	3
Tomohiro SOGABE	
New Trends on Malware Propagation: From IoT Environments to Drone Swarms	4
ÁNGEL MARTÍN DEL REY	
2. CONTRIBUTED TALKS	5
Some Properties of Algebras Obtained by the Cayley-Dickson Process	6
NECHIFOR (MUHA) ANA-GABRIELA	
Block-Centered Compact Difference Methods and Application in Contamination Flows	7
Dong LIANG	
Some Properties of Matrices of Quaternions.	9
BAIAS ANDREEA-ELENA	
Numerical Solution of an Isentropic Euler System	10
BAHADDIN SİNSOYSAL, MAHIR RASULOV	
A Stochastic Maximum Principle Approach for a Nash Equilibrium of a Nonzero-Sum Game	12
Emel SAVKU	
On Generalized Leonardo Numbers and Fibonacci Fundamental System	13
ELEN SPREAFICO, PAULA CATARINO	
A Quadratic Estimation Approach from Fading Measurements Subject to Deception Attacks	15
RAQUEL CABALLERO-ÁGUILA, JOSEFA LINARES-PÉREZ	
Some Identities for Balancing and Lucas-Balancing Numbers in Bidimensional version	17

JOSÉ CHIMPANZO, PAULA CATARINO, MARÍA OTERO-ESPINAR

Numerical Analysis of the Nonlocal Elliptic Problem with a <i>p</i> -Kirchhoff-Type Term Using FEM	19
MAHAMAT SALEH DAOUSSA HAGGAR, MOHAMED MBEHOU	
Exponentiated Weibull Mixture Cure Model to Handle Cancer Data Sets	21
MOHAMED ADAM ISHAG, AHMED Z. AFIFY, ANTHONY WANJOYA, AGGREY ADAM	
Modeling of Nitrogen, Phosphorus, and Potassium Concentrations in Lakes Affected by Soil Fertilization	23
DÉTHIÉ DIONE, TEUBÉ CYRILLE MBAINAISSEM, TBAKARY KONÉ, PAUL PYTHON NDECKOU	
Fibonacci Fundamental Systems, Matrix Formulation of Generalized Fibonacci Sequences and Applications to Some Families of Numbers	24
MUSTAPHA RACHIDI	
A Mathematical Model Unifying Wetting and Solidification Phenomena	26
YULII D. SHIKHMURZAEV	
Elliptic Biquaternionic Sequence with Vietoris' Numbers as its Components	28
REGINA DE ALMEIDA, PAULA CATARINO	
Sequences of Uncountable Iterated Function Systems. The Convergence of The Sequences of Fractals and Fractal Measures Associated.	30
ION MIERLUS-MAZILU, LUCIAN NITA	
On Generalized Complex Space Forms Satisfying Certain Conditions On The Holomorphic Curvature Tensor	32
PEGAH MUTLU	
The General System of Gerdjikov–Ivanov Equation	34
MEHMET UNLU, RAMAZAN ERCAN	
On Min Matrices Involving Chebyshev Polynomials	35
FATIH YILMAZ, SAMET ARPACI, AYBÜKE ERTAŞ	

On Circulant Matrices Involving Fibonacci Polynomials	36
FATIH YILMAZ, AYBÜKE ERTAŞ, SAMET ARPACI	
Approximation by Bivariate Bernstein-Kantorovich Operators that Reproduce Exponential Functions	37
KADIR KANAT, MELEK SOFYALIOĞLU, HALIME ALTUNTAŞ	
A Generalization of Szász-Kantorovich Operators by Using Special Polynomials	38
KADIR KANAT, MELEK SOFYALIOĞLU, FERIDE ÇETİN	
Service-Learning Activity in Statistics Course	39
ARACELI QUEIRUGA-DIOS, DEOLINDA RASTEIRO, BEATRIZ SÁNCHEZ BAR- BERO, Ángel MARTÍN DEL REY, ION MIERLUS-MAZILU, MARÍA JESÚS SAN- TOS SÁNCHEZ	
Method of Hydrodynamic Images and Quantum Calculus in Fock-Bargmann Representation of Quantum States	41
OKTAY K PASHAEV	
Algebraic and Quantum Mechanical Approach to Spinors	43
TAHIR MANZOOR, S.N. HASAN	
A Numerical Approach for a Singularly Perturbed Mixed Type Differential-Difference Equa- tion	44
ERKAN CIMEN	
On a New Type Dual Hyperbolic Numbers	46
ECE GÜLŞAH ÇOLAK, NAZMIYE GÖNÜL BİLGİN, YÜKSEL SOYKAN	
A Finite Difference Method for Coupled System of Singularly Perturbed Differential Equations	48
Sevket UNCU, Erkan CIMEN	
Fekete-Szegö Problem for Certain Subclasses of Analytic Functions Related to The Combina- tion of Differential Operators	50
Alı İhsan KOÇ, Erhan DENİZ, Sercan KAZIMOĞLU	
Statistical Modeling of Average Nusselt Number	51

BENGISEN PEKMEN GERIDONMEZ

SOLO Taxonomy in The Evaluation of Engineering Students: A Case Study in Mathematics	52
CRISTINA M.R. CARIDADE, VERÓNICA PEREIRA	
Is Collaborative Learning a Voluntary Process?	54
D. M. L. DIAS RASTEIRO, C.M.R CARIDADE	
On Univalence Criteria for Analytic Functions Defined by a Linear Multiplier Differential Operator	56
UFUK ÖZTÜRK, ERHAN DENİZ, SERCAN KAZIMOĞLU	
Application of Discrete Wavelet Transform and Tree-Based Ensemble Machine Learning for Modeling of Particulate Matter Concentrations	57
MAYA STOIMENOVA-MINOVA, SNEZHANA GOCHEVA-ILIEVA, ATANAS IVANOV	
On Strong Fuzzy Partial Metric Spaces	58
Elif GÜNER, Halis AYGÜN	
Teaching Mathematics in STEM Education.	60
ION MIERLUS-MAZILU, FATIH YILMAZ	
Edge Detection on Linear Diophantine Fuzzy Sets	62
BAŞAK ALDEMİR, ELIF GÜNER, HALIS AYGÜN	
On Some Fixed Point Theorems	64
VILDAN OZTURK	
An Algorithm Focused on Determining The Best Parameterization Tool for Uncertain Envi- ronments Based on Decision Making	65
TUGBAHAN SIMSEKLER DİZMAN, NAIME DEMİRTAS, ORHAN DALKİLİC	
On Some Gaussian Oresme Numbers	66
SERPIL HALICI, ELIFCAN SAYIN	
Pedagogical Experience to Promote Academic Success: A Case Study	68

EMÍLIA BIGOTTE, MARÍA JOSÉ CÁCERES GARCÍA, ARACELI QUEIRUGA-DIOS	
On a Class of Fourth Order Linear Recursive Sequences	70
GUL KARADENIZ GOZERI	
Effects of Fear and Refuge Use by Prey in a Predation Model	72
ALEJANDRO ROJAS-PALMA, EDUARDO GONZÁLEZ OLIVARES	
The Effect of Covariance Structures on Parameter Estimation under Multivariate Laplace Dis- tribution in MANOVA	74
Müge BORAZAN, Serpil AKTAŞ ALTUNAY	
Unpredictable Solutions of Quasilinear Systems with Discontinuous Right-hand Sides	76
Mehmet Onur FEN, Fatma Tokmak FEN	
Unpredictability in Retarded Shunting Inhibitory Cellular Neural Networks	77
FATMA TOKMAK FEN, MEHMET ONUR FEN	
Forms of Assessment in View of the Development of Mathematical Competencies	78
DANIELA RICHTARIKOVA	
On Determinants and Norms of Circulant Matrices with Fibonacci Quaternions	80
SEDA YAMAÇ AKBIYIK, SERHAT YILDIRIM, FATIH YILMAZ	
G_2 – frame formulae for Spatial Split Octonionic Curves	82
MUCAHIT AKBITIK, JETA ALO	
New G-Closed Sets With Related to An Ideal	84
AYNUK KESKIN KAYMAKUI	
Adal Class of Survival Regression Models: An Application to Right-Censored Lifetime Data Set	86
ABDISALAM HASSAN MUSE, CHRISTOPHE CHESNAUE	

Connection of Balancing Numbers with Solution of a System of Two Higher-Order Difference equations 88

YACINE HALIM, AMIRA KHELIFA

Delamination Resistance of Laminated Glass Plates Having Ethyl Vinyl Acetate, Polyvinyl Butyral and Sentryglas Plus Interlayers	89
EBRU DURAL	
A Symmetric Exploration of Dual Balancing and Cobalancing Numbers and Quaternions	91
Suleyman AYDİNYUZ	
Fermatean Fuzzy Type a Three-Way Correlation Coefficient	93
MURAT KİRİŞCİ	
Characterization of the Finite Groups	95
OPREA (MANOLICĂ) GEORGIA-ALINA	

INVITED TALKS

Invited Speakers

- Miguel Ángel GONZÁLEZ DE LA TORRE, Spanish National Research Council (Spain)
- Tomohiro SOGABE, Nagoya University, (Japan)
- Ángel MARTÍN DEL REY, Universidad de Salamanca, (Spain)



APPLICABILITY OF AI TO CRYPTOGRAPHIC ALGORITHMS

Miguel Ángel GONZÁLEZ DE LA TORRE^{1,*}

¹Spanish National Research Council (CSIC), Spain

ABSTRACT

Recently, the National Institute of Standards and Technology set CRYSTALS– Kyber as post-quantum public key encryption/key encapsulation mechanism standard, and CRYSTALS–Dilithium as post–quantum digital signature standard. These post quantum cryptosystems are also recommended for national security systems. As a result, it is important to identify and analyze the weaknesses and potential information leakage points, so that they can be resolved. In this talk, the newest side channel attacks based on artificial intelligence models against Kyber and Dilithium are presented, focusing on the specific function attacked.

^{*}*Corresponding Author's E-mail: magonzaleztorre@gmail.com*



RECENT DEVELOPMENTS IN COMPUTING MATRIX FUNCTIONS WITH THE DOUBLE EXPONENTIAL FORMULAS

Tomohiro SOGABE^{1,*}

¹Nagoya University, Japan

ABSTRACT

Matrix fractional powers, matrix logarithms, and matrix exponentials are examples of matrix functions, which arise from a rich variety of applications such as fractional partial differential equations, control theory, lattice quantum chromodynamics, and quantum information. Among many approaches to computing matrix functions, we have focused on integral representations of matrix functions and solved them using numerical integration formulas. This talk will describe these recent developments in our numerical algorithms.

^{*}Corresponding Author's E-mail: sogabe@na.nuap.nagoya-u.ac.jp



NEW TRENDS ON MALWARE PROPAGATION: FROM IOT ENVIRONMENTS TO DRONE SWARMS

Ángel MARTÍN DEL REY^{1,*}

¹University of Salamanca, Spain

ABSTRACT

Currently, due to the degree of digitalization of our society, the main goal of Mathematical Epidemiology is not only the development of mathematical models for the study of communicable diseases caused by biological agents but also the study and analysis of the propagation of malicious code (malware) on different types of networks. This new scenario has not been managed in a proper way since the study of the new malware models has been based on the same epidemiological framework than those devoted to biological agents. Then both the epidemiological coefficients and the types of incidences used in their development are defined analogously to those used in the case of biological agents. Consequently, the great majority of the proposed mathematical models to simulate malware propagation lack sufficient realism to consider them efficient. Likewise, new techniques related to Complex Network Analysis and Machine Learning that have appeared in recent years can be very effective in developing of these new families of models. The main goal of this talk is to show a reformulation the fundamentals of Mathematical Epidemiology to the case of the spread of malicious code and, at the same time, to explore the use of new techniques to design and analyze novel models that predict malware behavior in different scenarios such as IoT environments or drone swarms.

^{*}*Corresponding Author's E-mail: delrey@usal.es*

CONTRIBUTED TALKS



Some properties of algebras obtained by the Cayley-Dickson process

Nechifor (Muha) Ana-GABRIELA^{1,*}

¹Doctoral School of Mathematics, Ovidius University, Constanța, Romania

ABSTRACT

The Cayley-Dickson process gives us an alternative framework to view the construction of quaternions and octonions, being a method of obtaining new algebras of higher dimensions from the old ones. This implies an array operation on square arrays distinct from matrix multiplication.

By examining the Cayley-Dickson process is found a square representation for the octonions with a multiplication distinct from matrix multiplication. This representation also includes the one for complex numbers and the quaternions.

The Cayley-Dickson process for the real numbers is an iterative process that forms algebras over \mathbb{R} with a conjugation involution. By applying it on the set \mathbb{R} , we obtain that \mathbb{R} produces \mathbb{C} then \mathbb{H} then \mathbb{O} , taking the ordered, commutative, associative algebra \mathbb{R} and gradually eliminating one adjective at a time, fact that illustrates the way how each of these algebras nests inside the next one. Using the previous construction of new algebras from the old ones, we try to explore their properties. Some of them already known are presented in this paper, but the question remains still open.

Keywords Cayley-Dickson process \cdot Quaternion division algebra \cdot Octonion division algebra \cdot Normed division algebra

- [1] Craig Culbert., Cayley-Dickson algebras and loops, Journal of Generalized Lie Theory and Applications, Vol. 1, No. 1-17, 2007.
- [2] John Voight, Quaternion algebras, v.0.0.26, March 27, 2021.
- [3] James McCusker, Quaternions and Octonions, University of Adelaide, 2018-2019.
- [4] R.D. Schaffer, An Introduction to Nonassociative Algebras, Masssachusetts Institute of Technology, Stillwater, Oklahoma, 1961
- [5] Ravi P. Agarwal, Cristina Flaut, An Introduction to Linear Algebra, CRC Press, 2007

^{*}Corresponding Author's E-mail: nechifor.ana96@gmail.com



BLOCK-CENTERED COMPACT DIFFERENCE METHODS AND APPLICATION IN CONTAMINATION FLOWS

Dong LIANG^{1,*}

¹Department of Mathematics and Statistics, York University, Toronto, ON, M3J 1P3, Canada

ABSTRACT

Contamination flows in porous media are important in many applications, which are characterized by transport and nonlinear reaction processes in porous media in large-scale and long-term prediction and protection. In general, the reactions can be described as the kinetically controlled dissolution-precipitation reactions or the geochemical equilibrium reactions as hydrolysis aqueous complexation, oxidationreduction, ion exchange, surface complexation, and gas dissolution-exsolution reactions. Mathematical models describing contamination flows in porous media are the time-dependent and coupled nonlinear partial differential equations. In this talk, we will first present our development of efficient block-centered domaindecomposition methods for solving contamination flows in parallel computing. We will then present block-centered compact differnece methods for solving the time-dependent partial differential equations and the nonlinear contaminant transport equations with adsorption. Meanwhile, the block-centered compact S-DDM scheme is also reported. The feature of the developed methods is that while keeping the advantages of the domain decomposition and the splitting technique, the S-DDM schemse preserve mass. Numerical experiments are given to show their performances. The developed algorithms work efficiently over multiple sub-domains over block-centered meshes, which can be applied in simulation of contamination flows.

Keywords Block-Centered · Compact Difference · Contamination flow

- [1] Bear J., Dynamics of fluids in porous media, Courier Corporation, 2013.
- [2] Arbogast T. and Taicher A.L., A cell-centered finite difference method for a degenerate elliptic equation arising from two-phase mixtures, Comput. Geosci., 21 (2017), 701-712.

^{*}Corresponding Author's E-mail: dliang@yorku.ca

IV. International Conference on Mathematics and Its Applications in Science and Engineering (ICMASE 2023)

- [3] Liang D. and Zhou Z., The conservative splitting domain decomposition method for multicomponent contamination flows in porous media, J. Comput. Phys., 400 (2020), 485 108974.
- [4] Radu F. A., Kumar K., Nordbotten J. and Pop I.S., A robust, mass conservative scheme for two-phase flow in porous media including Holder continuous nonlinearities, IMA J. Numer. Anal., 38 (2018), 884-920.



Some Properties of Matrices of Quaternions

Baias Andreea-ELANA^{1,*}

ABSTRACT

In 1843, Irish mathematician William Rowan Hamilton made an important discovery in the field of algebra, namely quaternions. These are numbers with four components, which form a four-dimensional real algebra. Hamilton's discovery attracted the attention of the scientific world and paved the way for new discoveries in mathematics and physics.

Hamilton described all the properties of the set of quaternions, including the fact that the commutativity of multiplication of two quaternions is no longer fulfilled. This property posed a challenge for many mathematicians who were trying to work with quaternions, but at the same time, it offered a new perspective on algebra and opened the way for the development of new techniques and methods.

This paper presents some fundamental tools for developing matrix analysis over the real quaternion algebra. Specifically, it details the properties of matrices over real quaternions.

Quaternion algebra is an extension of complex numbers, and matrices over real quaternions are matrices with elements in the quaternion algebra. These matrices have interesting properties and can be used to solve problems in various fields, such as physics, engineering, or computer science.

- [1] Y.Tian, *Matrix representations of octonions and their applications*, Adv.Appl. Clifford Algebras, 10(1)(2000), 61-90.
- [2] J. L. Brenner, Matrices of quaternions, Pacific J. Math. 1(1951), 329–335.
- [3] Y.Tian *Matrix Theory over the Complex Quaternion Algebra*, Mathematics, Rings and Algebras, published 1 April 2000.
- [4] C. Flaut, V. Shpakivskyi *Real matrix representations for the complex quaternions*, Adv. Appl. Clifford Algebras, 23(3)(2013), 657-671.
- [5] C. Flaut, Some remarks regarding quaternions and octonions, Bulletin mathématique de la Société des Sciences Mathématiques de Roumanie, vol. 52 (100), No. 4 (2009), pp. 427-439 (13 pages).

^{*}*Corresponding Author's E-mail: andreeatugui@yahoo.com*



NUMERICAL SOLUTION OF AN ISENTROPIC EULER SYSTEM

Bahaddin SİNSOYSAL^{1,*}, Mahir RASULOV²

¹Istanbul Gedik University, Faculty of Engineering, Department of Computer Engineering, Kartal, Istanbul, Turkey ²Institute of Oil and Gas of ANAS, Department of Numerical Modeling of Intralayer Dynamic Processes, Baku, Azerbaijan

ABSTRACT

In this study, a special finite differences method for solving the following Cauchy problem of the simplified Euler system which models the flow of incompressible, irrotational and low viscosity fluid subject to a constant pressure

$$\frac{\partial u}{\partial t} + u\frac{\partial u}{\partial x} + v\frac{\partial u}{\partial y} = -\frac{1}{\rho}\frac{\partial p}{\partial x},\tag{1}$$

$$\frac{\partial v}{\partial t} + u\frac{\partial v}{\partial x} + v\frac{\partial v}{\partial y} = -\frac{1}{\rho}\frac{\partial p}{\partial y},\tag{2}$$

$$\frac{\partial u}{\partial x} + \frac{\partial v}{\partial y} = 0. \tag{3}$$

is examined [1], [2]

The basic feature of the system of equations is that their solutions have jumps of unknown locations. These features present significant difficulties in implementing the classical methods to find the solution of the equation during their own time. For this goal, a special auxiliary problem which is the Bernoulli integral of the two-dimensional Euler's system of equations is suggested. The auxiliary problem permits us to develop effective and economical algorithms since the solution of it are smoother than the solution of the main problem [3], [4]. Finally, a finite difference method in the class of discontinuous functions is proposed to find the numerical solution of the nonlinear isentropic Euler system expressing the motion of polytropic gases.

Keywords 2D Euler's systems \cdot Auxiliary problem \cdot Finite differences schema in class of discontinuous functions

References

[1] Anderson D.A., Tannehill J.C., and Pletcher R.H., Computational Fluid Mechanics and Heat Transfer, Washington, DC: Taylor & Francis Group, 2013.

^{*}Corresponding Author's E-mail: bahaddin.sinsoysal@gedik.edu.tr

IV. International Conference on Mathematics and Its Applications in Science and Engineering (ICMASE 2023)

- [2] Rasulov M.A., Coskun E., and Sinsoysal, B., A finite differences method for a two-dimensional nonlinear hyperbolic equation in a class of discontinuous functions, Appl. Math. Comp., 140(2-3): 279–295, 2003.
- [3] Rasulov M.A., and Karaguler T., Finite differences scheme for the Euler sistem of equations in a class of discontinuous functions, Numer. Anal. Appl., LNCS 3401: 471-477, 2005.
- [4] Sinsoysal B., Rasulov M., and Carfi H., On grid method for entropy solution of the problem of simultaneous motion of two-fhase fluid in a natural reservoir, Asian J. Appl. Sci., 4(2): 286-302, 2016.



A STOCHASTIC MAXIMUM PRINCIPLE APPROACH FOR A NASH Equilibrium of a Nonzero-Sum Game

Emel SAVKU^{1,*}

¹University of Oslo, Department of Mathematics

ABSTRACT

We develop a Stochastic Maximum Principle approach for two player constraint nonzero-sum stochastic differential game, which is modeled by Markov regimeswitching jump-diffusion processes. We provide the relations between a usual stochastic control setting and a Lagrangian one. We present corresponding theorems for two different type of constraints, which lead us to find real valued and stochastic Lagrange multipliers, respectively. Then, we illustrate our results for an example of cooperation between a bank and an insurance company, which is a popular, well-known business agreement type, called Bancassurance. We investigate optimal dividend strategy for the company as a best response according to the optimal mean rate of return choice of a bank, and vice versa. We find out a Nash equilibrium for this game and solve the adjoint equations explicitly for each state.

Keywords Stochastic Optimal Control \cdot Stochastic Differential Games \cdot Regime-switches \cdot Insurance

References

[1] Savku, E. A stochastic control approach for constrained stochastic differential games with jumps and regimes. arXiv preprint arXiv:2301.12921 (2023).

^{*}*Corresponding Author's E-mail: esavku@gmail.com*



ON GENERALIZED LEONARDO NUMBERS AND FIBONACCI FUNDAMENTAL SYSTEM

Elen Viviani Pereira SPREAFICO 1,*, Paula Maria Machado Cruz CATARINO²

¹Institute of Mathematics, Federal University of Mato Grosso do Sul ²Department of Mathematics, University of Trás-os-Montes e Alto Douro

ABSTRACT

Recently, several families of sequences of numbers have been studied, such as Fibonacci, Pell, Lucas, Jacobsthal, Padovan and Perrin numbers, and their generalizations. One of these interesting sequences is the Leonardo numbers, $\{Le_n\}_{n\geq 0}$, defined by the recurrence relation

$$Le_n = Le_{n-1} + Le_{n-2} + 1, \ (n \ge 2), \tag{4}$$

with initial conditions $Le_0 = Le_1 = 1$. The Leonardo numbers was introduced by Catarino and Borges in [4] and continues to be explored in various works in the literature (see more in [1],[2], [3],[6], [7], and references there in). Since the recurrence relation (4) can be write under the form $Le_{n+1} = 2Le_n - Le_{n-2}$, $(n \ge 2)$, we consider following generalization,

$$L_{n+1} = 2^d L_n - k L_{n-2}, \ (n \ge 2), \tag{5}$$

with $d, k \ge 1$ and initial conditions $L_0 = \alpha_1, L_1 = \alpha_1$ and $L_2 = \alpha_2$, called generalized Leonardo numbers (5). Our goal is explore the generalized Leonardo numbers (5), through the properties of the Fibonacci fundamental systems related to the elements of this sequence, namely,

$$\begin{cases} L_{n+1}^{(j)} = 2^d L_n^{(j)} - k L_{n-2}^{(j)}, \text{ for } n \ge 3, \\ L_n^{(j)} = \delta_{n+1}^{(j)}; \text{ for } n = 0, 1, 2. \end{cases}$$
(6)

We describe explicitly the closed connection between the sequences $\{L_n^{(1)}\}_{n\geq 0}, \{L_n^{(2)}\}_{n\geq 0}$ and the fundamental sequences of generalized Leonardo numbers $\{L_n^{(3)}\}_{n\geq 0}$. Moreover, the matrix approach is considered for studying the combinatorial identities and the generalized Cassini identity for the generalized Leonardo numbers. In addition, the analytical aspect about each sequence of the generalized Leonardo numbers (5) is elaborated. Finally, the combinatorial and the analytical formula of the generalized Cassini identity are investigate.

^{*}Corresponding Author's E-mail: elen.spreafico@ufms.br

This approach has been applied for models of generalized sequences, as generalized Fibonacci numbers and the generalized Pell numbers (see more details in [5],[3] and [9]), and several results were established.

Keywords Leonardo numbers · Fibonacci fundamental system · Combinatorial formulas · Analytical formulas · Cassini Identity

- [1] Alp Y., Koçer E. G., Some properties of Leonardo numbers. Konuralp Journal of Mathematics, 9(1), 183–189, 2021.
- [2] Alves F. R. V and Vieira R. P. M., The Newton Fractal's Leonardo Sequence Study with the Google Colab. International Electronic Journal of Mathematics Education, **15**, 1–9, 2020.
- [3] Catarino, P. and Borges, A., A Note on Incomplete Leonardo Numbers. Integers, 20, A43,2020.
- [4] Catarino, P. and Borges, A., On Leonardo numbers. Acta Mathematica Universitatis Comenianae, 89(1), 75–86, 2019
- [5] Craveiro I. M., Pereira Spreafico E. V. and Rachidi M., On a model of generalized Pell numbers, International Journal of Advanced Engineering Research and Science (IJAERS), 8.9, 527–550, 2021.
- [6] Kara N. and Yilmaz, F., On Hybrid Numbers with Gaussian Leonardo Coefficients., Mathematics, 11, 1551, https://doi.org/10.3390/math11061551, 2023.
- [7] Kuhapatanakul K. and Chobsorn J., On the Generalized Leonardo Numbers., Integers 22, A48,2022.
- [8] Spreafico E.V. P. and Rachidi M., Fibonacci Fundamental System and Generalized Cassini Identity, Fibonacci Quarterly, 57.2, 155–157,2019.
- [9] Spreafico E.V.P. and Rachidi M., On Generalized Pell Numbers of Order $r \ge 2$, Trends in Computational and Applied Mathematics , 22.1, 125–138,2021.



A QUADRATIC ESTIMATION APPROACH FROM FADING MEASUREMENTS SUBJECT TO DECEPTION ATTACKS

Raquel Caballero-ÁGUILA^{1,*}, Josefa Linares-PÉREZ²

¹Departamento de Estadística e Investigación Operativa. Universidad de Jaén. Jaén (Spain) ² Departamento de Estadística e Investigación Operativa. Universidad de Granada. Granada (Spain)

ABSTRACT

Over the last decades, the least-squares (LS) estimation problem of random signals from noisy measurements has been a hot research topic with interesting applications in many fields, such as engineering and economics, among others. The well-known Kalman filter is useful for providing the LS optimal signal estimator for linear systems subject to Gaussian and mutually independent initial signal and noise processes. This estimator is linear and, therefore, under ideal Gaussianity and independence conditions, the LS linear estimator is equal to the optimal one. However, in the presence of non-Gaussian disturbances, the LS linear estimator is, generally, non-optimal and computationally expensive, not to mention the case of complex systems with different uncertainties, where the LS linear filter experiences a significant performance degradation. Thus, other suboptimal estimators –such as polynomial and, in particular, quadratic estimators–, which strike a balance between estimation accuracy and computational complexity, have gained significant attention.

Although the LS quadratic estimation problem has been studied for different classes of linear and nonlinear systems where the signal evolution model is known (see, e.g., [1]-[3]), many practical situations where this model is not available may require other kind of information, such as covariance information. In this framework, based on the knowledge of the statistical moments –up to the fourth-order ones– of the stochastic processes involved in the observation equation, LS quadratic estimation algorithms have been proposed in different scenarios, such as measurements with correlated one-step random delays [4] and measurements with random packet dropouts [5]. However, to the best of the authors' knowledge, the quadratic estimation problem has not been studied in the class of systems with fading measurements exposed to stochastic deception attacks.

In this paper, using covariance information, the LS quadratic filtering and fixedpoint smoothing problems are addressed under the assumption that the measurements are perturbed by both a multiplicative noise and a time-correlated additive

^{*}Corresponding Author's E-mail: raguila@ujaen.es

noise, affected by the fading phenomena and exposed to random deception attacks. For the LS quadratic estimation approach, the signal and observation vectors are augmented by aggregation of the original vectors with their second-order Kronecker powers. Then, using Kronecker algebra rules and an innovation approach, the linear estimators of the original signal based on the augmented observations are obtained, providing the required quadratic estimators. A simulation example shows the feasibility of the proposed quadratic estimation algorithms; also, the superiority of the quadratic estimators or the estimators or the influence of the deception attack success probabilities on the estimation accuracy is analyzed.

Keywords Least-squares quadratic estimation \cdot Fading measurements \cdot Multiplicative noise \cdot Time-correlated additive noise \cdot Deception attacks

- [1] Liu, Q., Wang, Z., Han, Q., and Jiang, C., Quadratic estimation for discrete time-varying non-Gaussian systems with multiplicative noises and quantization effects, Automatica, 113, 108714, 2020.
- [2] Wang, S., Wang, Z., Dong, H., Chen, Y., and Alsaadi, F.E., Recursive Quadratic Filtering for Linear Discrete Non-Gaussian Systems Over Time-Correlated Fading Channels, IEEE Trans. Signal Process., 70: 3343–3356, 2022.
- [3] Wang, S., Wang, Z., Dong, H., and Chen, Y., Recursive state estimation for stochastic nonlinear non-Gaussian systems using energy-harvesting sensors: A quadratic estimation approach, Automatica, 147, 110671, 2023.
- [4] Hermoso-Carazo, A., and Linares-Pérez, J., Linear and quadratic least-squares estimation using measurements with correlated one-step random delay, Digit. Signal Process., 18(3): 450–464, 2008.
- [5] Caballero-Águila, R., Hermoso-Carazo, A., and Linares-Pérez, J., Recursive least-squares quadratic smoothing from measurements with packet dropouts, Signal Process., 92: 931–938, 2012.



Some identities for balancing and Lucas-balancing numbers in bidimensional version

José CHIMPANZO^{1,*}, Paula CATARINO², María Otero-ESPINAR³

¹Department of Exact Sciences, Higher Polytechnic Institute of Soyo, Angola ²Department of Mathematics, University of Trás-os-Montes e Alto Douro, Portugal ³Department of Statistics, Mathematical Analysis and Optimization, University of Santiago de Compostela, Spain

ABSTRACT

Actually, several sequences of numbers have been the research topic of many researchers. One example of such sequences are the balancing $\{B_n\}_{n\geq 0}$ and Lucasbalancing $\{C_n\}_{n>0}$ numbers given by the recurrences relations

$$B_{n+2} = 6B_{n+1} - B_n,$$

with the initial conditions $B_0 = 0$ and $B_1 = 1$;

$$C_{n+2} = 6C_{n+1} - C_n,$$

with the initial conditions $C_0 = 1$ and $C_1 = 3$, respectively. (See for more information the works [1], [2], [5], [6], [7], [8], [9], among others).

In this work we present a bidimensional extension of these two sequences, namely, bidimensional balancing numbers $\{B_{(n,m)}\}_{n,m\geq 0}$ and bidimensional Lucas-balancing numbers $\{C_{(n,m)}\}_{n,m\geq 0}$. These sequences are defined respectively as follows:

$$\begin{cases} B_{(n+1,m)} &= 6B_{(n,m)} - B_{(n-1,m)}, \\ B_{(n,m+1)} &= B_{(n,m)} - B_{(n,m-1)}, \end{cases}$$

with the following initial conditions $B_{(0,0)} = 0$, $B_{(1,0)} = 1$, $B_{(0,1)} = i$, $B_{(1,1)} = 1+i$, where $i^2 = -1$ and n and m are non-negative integers;

$$\begin{cases} C_{(n+1,m)} = 6C_{(n,m)} - C_{(n-1,m)}, \\ C_{(n,m+1)} = C_{(n,m)} - C_{(n,m-1)}, \end{cases}$$

with the following initial conditions $C_{(0,0)} = 1$, $C_{(1,0)} = 3$, $C_{(0,1)} = 1 + i$, $C_{(1,1)} = 3 + i$. (See the works [3] and [4] for more information).

About these new sequences, we study some identities satisfied by them involving sums of their terms.

^{*}Corresponding Author's E-mail: jalchimpanzo@gmail.com

Keywords Identities \cdot Balancing numbers \cdot Lucas-balancing numbers \cdot Bidimensional version

- [1] Bouroubi, S., On the Square-triangular and Balancing-Numbers. *Rostock Math. Kolloq.* 72 (2021), 73-80.
- [2] Behera, A. and Panda, G. K., On the square roots of triangular numbers. *Fib. Quart.* 37 (1999), 98-105.
- [3] Chimpanzo, J., Catarino, P., Vasco, P., and Borges, A., Bidimensional extensions of balancing and Lucas-Balancing numbers. *J. Discrete Math. Sci. Cryptogr.*, accepted.
- [4] Chimpanzo, J., Otero-Espinar, M. V, Borges, A., Vasco, P., Catarino, P. *Bidimensional extensions of cobalancing and Lucas-cobalancing numbers*. Submitted.
- [5] Liptai, K., Lucas Balancing Numbers. Acta Math. Univ. Ostrav. 14 (2006), 43-47.
- [6] Liptai, K., Luca, F., Pinter, A. and Szalay, L., Generalized Balancing Numbers. *Indag. Mathem.* 20(1) (2009), 87-100.
- [7] Olajos, P., Properties of Balancing, Cobalancing and Generalized Balancing Numbers. *Annales Mathematicae et Informaticae* 37 (2010), 125-138.
- [8] Panda, G. K. and Ray, P. K., Some Links of Balancing and Cobalancing Numbers with Pell and Associated Pell Numbers. *Bul. of Inst. of Math. Acad. Sinica* 6 (1) (2011), 41-72.
- [9] Ray, P. K., *Balancing and Cobalancing Numbers*. Ph.D. thesis, Department of Mathematics, National Institute of Technology, Rourkela, India, (2009).



NUMERICAL ANALYSIS OF THE NONLOCAL ELLIPTIC PROBLEM WITH A p-Kirchhoff-type term using FEM

Mahamat Saleh Daoussa HAGGAR^{1,*}, Mohamed MBEHOU²

¹Department of Mathematics, University of Ndjamena, Chad ²Department of Mathematics, University of Yaounde 1, Cameroon

ABSTRACT

There has been active ongoing research on the study of problems associated with the *p*-Laplace operator, which appears in a variety of physical fields [2, 3, 4]. In particular, a lot of attention has been devoted to nonlocal problems. One of the justifications of such models lies in the fact that in reality the measurements are not made pointwise but through some local average. This work is devoted to the study of the finite element method for a class of nonlocal elliptic problems associated with *p*-Kirchhoff-type operator. The convergence and *a priori* error estimates for the discrete formulation are established. Moreover, the finite element formulation is nonlinear, it can then be solved by Newton-Raphson's iterative but the main issue is that the Jacobian matrix of the Newton-Raphson method is full due to the presence of the nonlocal term thereby making computation expensive. The scheme presented here takes into account such issues. The predictions observed theoretically are validated by means of numerical experiments.

Keywords Galerkin finite element method \cdot Newton-Raphson method \cdot Nonlocal diffusion term $\cdot p$ -Kirchhoff operator

- [1] J. C. Duque, R. M. Almeida, S. N. Antontsev, and J. Ferreira, "A reactiondiffusion model for the nonlinear coupled system: existence, uniqueness, long time behavior and localization properties of solutions," *IMA Journal of Applied Mathematics*, pp. 1–21, 2016.
- [2] J. Djoko, J. Lubuma, and M. Mbehou, "On the numerical solution of the stationary power-law Stokes equations: A penalty finite element approach," *Journal of Scientific Computing*, vol. 69, no. 3, pp. 1058–1082, 2016.
- [3] I. Andrei, "Existence theorems for some classes of boundary value problems involving the p (x)-laplacian," *Nonlinear Anal. Model. Control*, vol. 13, pp. 145– 158, 2008.

^{*}Corresponding Author's E-mail: msdhaggar@gmail.com

IV. International Conference on Mathematics and Its Applications in Science and Engineering (ICMASE 2023)

[4] M. D. Haggar and M. Mbehou, "On the numerical solution of the nonlocal elliptic problem with a p-Kirchhoff-type term," *Applied Mathematics and Information Sciences, an International Journal*, vol. 15, no. 5, pp. 547–553, 2021.



EXPONENTIATED WEIBULL MIXTURE CURE MODEL TO HANDLE CANCER DATA SETS

Mohamed Adam ISHAG^{1,*}, Ahmed Z. AFIFY², Anthony WANJOYA³, Aggrey ADAM⁴

¹Department of Mathematics (Statistics Option) Program, Pan African University, Institute for Basic Sciences, Technology, and Innovation, Kenya.

¹Department of Computational Statistics, College of Computer Studies and Statistics, University of Kordofan, Sudan.

²Department of Statistics, Mathematics, and Insurance, Benha University, Egypt.

³Department of Mathematics, Jomo Kenyatta University of Agriculture and Technology, Kenya.

⁴Department of Mathematics and Physics, Technical University of Mombasa, Kenya.

ABSTRACT

It is generally assumed in survival data analysis that all study individuals will eventually experience the event of interest. However, it is to be assumed that a portion of these individuals will never be exposed to the event of interest. Typically, cure rate models are employed to model this type of data. We presented a maximum likelihood estimates analysis for the three-parameter exponentiated-Weibull (EW) distribution in the presence of cured individuals, censored data, and predictors in this study. A mixture cure model with EW distribution is presented in order to include a portion of unsusceptible (cured) individuals in the study. The proposed mixture cure model is the best model for fitting real-world data from cancer clinical trials.

Keywords Mixture cure model · survival analysis · Exponentiated-Weibull distribution · maximum likelihood estimation

- [1] Martinez, E. Z., Achcar, J. A., Jácome, A. A., & Santos, J. S. (2013). Mixture and non-mixture cure fraction models based on the generalized modified Weibull distribution with an application to gastric cancer data. Computer methods and programs in biomedicine, 112(3), 343-355.
- [2] Mazucheli, J., Coelho-Barros, E. A., & Achcar, J. A. (2013). The exponentiated exponential mixture and non-mixture cure rate model in the presence of covariates. Computer methods and programs in biomedicine, 112(1), 114-124.

^{*}Corresponding Author's E-mail: abc@hbv.edu.tr

- [3] Omer, M. E. A. M. E., Bakar, M. R. A., Adam, M. B., & Mustafa, M. S. (2020). Cure models with exponentiated Weibull exponential distribution for the analysis of melanoma patients. Mathematics, 8(11), 1926.
- [4] Mastor, A. B., Ngesa, O., Mung'atu, J., Afify, A. Z., & Muse, A. H. (2023). Extended Exponential-Weibull Mixture Cure Model for the Analysis of Cancer Clinical Trials. In Mathematical Methods for Engineering Applications: IC-MASE 2022, Bucharest, Romania, July 4–7 (pp. 239-247). Cham: Springer International Publishing.



MODELING OF NITROGEN, PHOSPHORUS, AND POTASSIUM CONCENTRATIONS IN LAKES AFFECTED BY SOIL FERTILIZATION

Déthié DIONE^{1,*}, Teubé Cyrille MBAINAISSEM², TBakary KONÉ³, Paul Python NDECKOU⁴

¹University of Gaston Berger of Saint-Louis, Senegal
 ²University of N'Djaména, N'Djaména, Chad
 ³University of Félix Houphouët-Boigny of Cocody
 ⁴University of Cheikh Anta Diop, Dakar, Senegal

ABSTRACT

The excessive use of fertilizer on agricultural land has led to a significant build-up of chemical nutrient stocks in the soil, which increases the risk of diffuse pollution of surface waters. The reservoirs to which these waters drain are also polluted by the chemical components of the fertilizer. This is a major environmental problem. Indeed, the fishery products contained in these water reservoirs are directly contaminated, and this remains a major public health problem. Thus, using ordinary partial derivatives, we established budget equations for the mass concentrations of the major components of fertilizer chemicals such as nitrogen (N), phosphorus (P) and potassium (K) found in each natural water reservoir. Using the Euler discretization method, we linearized these budget equations in order to formulate them numerically with AMPL and solve them. The numerical solutions obtained thus make it possible to predict the mass concentrations of the chemical elements (N, P, K) at the level of each water reservoir in time by taking the measures for a substantial reduction of the chemical content of fresh water.

Keywords Farmland · Water Reservoirs · Nitrogen · Phosphorus · Potassium · Partial Differential Equations

- [1] A. Will and B. Grüneberg, Modelling of Phosphor Concentration in Lakes Affected by Lignite Coal Mining. 2019.
- [2] Luxmoore, R. J., P. M. Jardine, G. V. Wilson, J. R.Joneset L.W. Zelazny., Physical and chemical controls of preferred path flow through a forested hillslope, Geoderma, 46, 139-154, 1990.

^{*}Corresponding Author's E-mail: dethiedione79@gmail.com



FIBONACCI FUNDAMENTAL SYSTEMS, MATRIX FORMULATION OF GENERALIZED FIBONACCI SEQUENCES AND APPLICATIONS TO SOME FAMILIES OF NUMBERS

Mustapha RACHIDI^{1,*}

¹Instituto de Matemáca - INMA Universidade Federal de Mato Grossso do Sul -UFMS Av. Costa e Silva/N, Cidade Universitária

Campo Grande, MS - Brasil

ABSTRACT

The purpose of this talk is to present the matrix formulation of the weighted generalized Fibonacci sequences and provide some of their properties. In this context, the fundamental Fibonacci system and the associated fundamental solution will play a crucial role, to prove interesting results, concerning analytical formulas, combinatorial formulas and other identities. The approach of generalized Fibonacci sequences, based on matrix theory, makes it possible to establish concrete mathematical applications related to number theory and other subjects. More precisely, we will illustrate the results obtained, by some concrete applications, related to special sequences of generalized Fibonacci numbers and generalized Pell numbers, as well as to other types of sequences of known numbers. Finally, concluding remarks and observations are given.

Keywords Matrix formulation of generalized Fibonacci sequences · Generalized Fibonacci Fundamental system · Generalized Fibonacci-Pell numbers and Cassini identities

- [1] R. Ben Taher and M. Rachidi, *Solving some generalized Vandermonde systems and inverse of their associate matrices via new approaches for the Binet formula*, Applied Mathematics and Computation **290** (2016), pp. 267-280.
- [2] B. El Wahbi, M. Mouline and M. Rachidi, Solving nonhomogeneous recurrences relations by matrix method, Fibonacci Quarterly 40-2 (2002), p. 109-117.

^{*}*Corresponding Author's E-mail:mu.rachidii@gmail.com, mustapha.rachidi@ufms.br*
IV. International Conference on Mathematics and Its Applications in Science and Engineering (ICMASE 2023)

- [3] E.V. Pereira-Spreafico and M. Rachidi, *Fibonacci Fundamental System and Generalized Cassini Identity*, Fibonacci Quarterly, Volume 57, Number 2 (May 2019), pp. 155-157.
- [4] R. P. Stanley, *Enumerative combinatorics*, Vol. I, Cambridge University Press, U.K., 1997.



A MATHEMATICAL MODEL UNIFYING WETTING AND SOLIDIFICATION PHENOMENA

Yulii D. SHIKHMURZAEV^{1,*}

¹ School of Mathematics, University of Birmingham, U.K.

ABSTRACT

The spreading of a liquid over a solid surface and the propagation of a solidification front through an initially warm liquid, previously studied as unrelated phenomena, have been brought together by the arrival of additive manufacturing where liquid drops impacting and solidifying on top of each other form complex 3-dimensional structures. The first of the above phenomana, known as 'dynamic wetting', has been the subject of research for 50 years with the focus primarily on finding the relationship between the contact angle formed by the free surface with the solid and the speed of the three-phase contact line. However, as recently found experimentally [1], no such relationship exists in principle, which largely devalued previous research effort [2]. On the other hand, the studies of the propagation of solidification fronts deal almost exclusively with the Stefan regime and its extensions towards kinetic undercooling, and they are irrelevant to the situation where the liquid is initially warm and the solidification front propagates not only in the normal direction but also along the solid substrate. Thus, the complex dynamics of both phenomena and their interaction make it necessary to develop a mathematical model which would (i) describe dynamic wetting on its own without imposing any angle-versusspeed relationship, (ii) describe solidification in the pre-Stefan regime and (iii) consider both dynamic wetting and solidification in the same conceptual framework. The present work addresses this challenge and shows that both dynamic wetting and solidification are actually particular cases in a general class of flows where interfaces form and/or disappear displaying dynamic properties in the process. In dynamic wetting, a freshly wet solid surface, i.e. a new liquid-solid interface, is created as the liquid spreads over the solid whilst solidification is essentially a process where continuous formation of the liquid-solid interface, as the liquid is taken into the solidification zone, is coupled with its disappearance, as the solidification zone loses its material to the solid phase. A particular situation illustrating the model's properties is the onset of solidification where it starts from pure interface formation and then evolves through non-equilibrium solidification towards the Stefan regime.

^{*}Corresponding Author's E-mail: y.d.shikhmurzaev@bham.ac.uk

Keywords Dynamic wetting · Solidification · Interface formation · Structureless approach · Non-equilibrium thermodynamics · Pre-Stefan regime

- [1] Mohammad Karim A., Davis S.H. and Kavehpour H.P., Forced versus spontaneous spreading. Langmuir, 32: 10153, 2016.
- [2] Shikhmurzaev Y.D., Moving contact lines and dynamic contact angles: a 'litmus test' for mathematical models, accomplishments and new challenges. Euro. Phys. J. Special Topics, 229: 1945-1977, 2020.
- [3] Kant P., Koldeweij R.B.J., Harth K., van Limbeek M.A.J. and Lohse D., Fast-freezing kinetics inside a droplet impacting on a cold surface. PNAS, 117: 2788-2794, 2020.



ELLIPTIC BIQUATERNIONIC SEQUENCE WITH VIETORIS' NUMBERS AS ITS COMPONENTS

Regina De ALMEIDA^{1,2,*}, Paula CATARINO^{1,2}

¹Department of Mathematics, University of Trás-os-Montes e Alto Douro, Portugal ²CMAT - Centre of Mathematics, Polo CMAT-UTAD

ABSTRACT

Special integers sequences have been the center of attention for many researchers, in this work we will focus our attention to a sequence of rational numbers denoted by *Vietoris sequence*, $\{v_n\}_{n \ge 0}$, which is defined by

$$v_n = \frac{1}{2^n} \binom{n}{\lfloor \frac{n}{2} \rfloor}, \qquad n \ge 0,$$

where $|\cdot|$ is the floor function. The first Vietoris' numbers of the sequence are

$$1, \ \frac{1}{2}, \ \frac{1}{2}, \frac{3}{8}, \ \frac{3}{8}, \ \frac{5}{16}, \ \frac{5}{16}, \ \frac{35}{128}, \ \frac{35}{128}, \ \frac{63}{256}, \ \frac{63}{256}, \ \frac{231}{1024}, \ \frac{231}{1024}, \ \cdots$$

which is related with the sequence A283208 in the OEIS in [5]. It is also known that the recurrence relation for this sequence is given by the following identity:

$$v_n = \left\{ egin{array}{cc} rac{n}{n+1} v_{n-1}, & n \ {
m odd} \\ v_{n-1}, & n \ {
m even} \\ 1, & n=1 \end{array}
ight. .$$

In 1958, L. Vietoris published a result in [7] where this sequence appeared. This sequence has applications in harmonic analysis, as can be seen in the work of R. Askey and J. Steinig, in [1], as well as, in the theory of stable holomorphic functions presented in the paper [6] by St. Ruscheweyh and L. Salinas.

Some properties of Vietoris' number sequence and some techniques, using special types of matrices that generates this number sequence were presented in [3] by P. Catarino and R. de Almeida.

In [2], we study some properties of the quaternionic sequence with Vietoris' numbers as its components, $\{Q_n\}_{n \ge 0}$,

$$Q_n = v_n + v_{n+1}\mathbf{i} + v_{n+2}\mathbf{j} + v_{n+3}\mathbf{k}, \quad n \in \mathbb{N},$$
(7)

^{*}Corresponding Author's E-mail: ralmeida@utad.pt

where $\{1, \mathbf{i}, \mathbf{j}, \mathbf{k}\}$ is the standard basis in \mathbb{R}^4 satisfying the following multiplication rules:

$$\mathbf{i}^2 = \mathbf{j}^2 = \mathbf{k}^2 = -1, \quad \mathbf{ij} = -\mathbf{ji} = \mathbf{k}, \quad \mathbf{jk} = -\mathbf{kj} = \mathbf{i}, \quad \mathbf{ki} = -\mathbf{ik} = \mathbf{j}.$$

The system of elliptical numbers is given by

$$\mathbb{C}_p = \{ x + Iy : x, y \in \mathbb{R}, \quad I^2 = p, \quad p < 0 \},$$

some properties of these type of numbers can be seen in [4]. Using the elliptic numbers, the set of elliptic biquaternion is defined as

$$\mathbb{H}_{\mathbb{C}_p} = \{ A_0 + A_1 \mathbf{i} + A_2 \mathbf{j} + A_3 \mathbf{k}, \quad A_s \in \mathbb{C}_p, \ s = 0, 1, 2, 3 \}.$$

In this paper, using (7), we introduce an elliptic biquaternionic sequence, $\{V_n^p\}_{n \ge 0}$, given by

$$V_n^p = Q_n + IQ_{n+1}, \quad I^2 = p, \quad p \in \mathbb{R}^+, \quad n \in \mathbb{N},$$

and discusse some of its properties.

Keywords Biquaternion · Elliptic numbers · Vietoris' number

- Askey R., Steinig J., Some positive trigonometric sums, Transactions AMS, 187(1): 295–307, 1974.
- [2] Catarino P., De Almeida R., On a quaternionic sequence with Vietoris' numbers, Filomat, 35(4): 1065–1086, 2021.
- [3] Catarino P., De Almeida R., A Note on Vietoris' Number Sequence, Mediterranean Journal of Mathematics, 19(1), 41, 2022.
- [4] Özen E. K., Tosun M., Elliptic Biquaternions Algebra. In 6th International Eurasian Conference on Mathematical Sciences and Applications (IECMSA-2017), AIP Conf. Proc. 1926, 020032-1020032-6.
- [5] Sloane N. J. A., Plouffe S., The Encyclopedia of Integer Sequences, Academic Press, San Diego, 1995.
- [6] Ruscheweyh St., Salinas L., Stable functions and Vietoris' theorem, J. Math. Anal. Appl., 291, 596–604, 2004.
- [7] Vietoris L., Über das Vorzeichen gewisser trigonometrischer Summen, Sitzungsber. Österr. Akad. Wiss 167: 125–135, 1958.



SEQUENCES OF UNCOUNTABLE ITERATED FUNCTION SYSTEMS. THE CONVERGENCE OF THE SEQUENCES OF FRACTALS AND FRACTAL MEASURES ASSOCIATED.

Ion MIERLUS-MAZILU^{1,*}, Lucian NITA¹

¹Technical University of Civil Engineering Bucharest, Romania

ABSTRACT

In this paper, we consider a sequence of uncountable iterated function system (U.I.F.S.). Each term of this sequence is built using an uncountable family of contractions and a linear and continuous operator. For each U.I.F.S. of the sequence we have an associated attractor, a Markov-type operator and a fractal measure.

First, we consider the Markov operator on the Borel normalized measures and thus, we obtain the Hutchinson (scalar) measure (or the fractal (scalar) measure). We prove that the support of the fractal measure is the attractor of the U.I.F.S.

The second step is to consider fractal vector measures. For this aim, we construct the Markov-type operator, using the family of contractions and an uncountable family of linear and continuous operators. Then, we consider a new operator, which adds a fixed measure μ° to the Markov operator. The fixed point of this new operator is called *the fractal vector measure*. The measure μ° can be chosen such that the support of the fractal vector measure is, also, the attractor of the U.I.F.S.

The third step is to consider a sequence of U.I.F.S., using a sequence $(T_n)_n$ of linear and continuous operators and an uncountable family of contractions, $(\omega_\alpha)_\alpha$. Then

 $[(T_n \circ \omega_\alpha)_\alpha]_n$ is a sequence of U.I.F.S. We suppose that $T_n \xrightarrow{\|\cdot\|} T$, T being, also a linear and continuous operator. We denote: K_n and μ_n^* the attractor and the fractal vector measure associated to $(T_n \circ \omega_\alpha)_\alpha$, and K, respectively μ^* the attractor and the fractal vector measure associated to $(T \circ \omega_\alpha)_\alpha$. The problem that we solve is: it is true that $K_n \to K$ and $\mu_n^* \to \mu$, in some appropriate metrics?

Finally, we give some examples, to illustrate the theoretical concepts.

Keywords Iterated function system \cdot attractor \cdot fractal measure \cdot Markov-type operator \cdot vector measure

References

[1] Constantinescu S., Mierlus-Mazilu I., Nita L., Families Of Iterated Function Systems. Convergences Properties Of The Associated Attractors And Fractal

^{*}*Corresponding Author's E-mail: ion.mierlusmazilu@utcb.ro*

Measures, U.P.B. Sci. Bull., Series A, 84(2): 107-115, 2022.

- [2] Chitescu I., Ioana L., Miculescu R., Nita L., Sesquiliniar Uniform Vector Integral, Proc. Indian Acad. Sci. (Math Sci), 125(2): 229-236, 2015.
- [3] Chitescu I., Ioana L., Miculescu R., Nita L., Monge-Kantorovich Norms on Spaces of Vector Measures, Results Math., 70: 349-371, 2016.
- [4] Chitescu I., Spatii de Functii (in Romanian), Editura Stiintifica si Enciclopedica, Bucharest, 1983.
- [5] Nita L., The attractor and the Hutchinson measure for an uncountable iterated function system, Proceedings of Mathematics and Educational Symposium of Department of Mathematics and Computer Science, The 2nd Edition: 109–111, Bucharest, 2016.
- [6] Siretchi G., Spatii Concrete in Analiza Functionala (in Romanian), Centrul de Multiplicare al Universitatii Bucuresti, Bucharest, 1982.



ON GENERALIZED COMPLEX SPACE FORMS SATISFYING CERTAIN CONDITIONS ON THE HOLOMORPHIC CURVATURE TENSOR

Pegah MUTLU ^{1,*}

¹Faculty of Engineering, Istanbul Gedik University, Istanbul, Turkey

ABSTRACT

In 1989, Z. Olszak has worked on the existence of a generalized complex space form. In 1998, M. Prvanović has introduced a tensor of Kaehler type for an almost Hermitian manifold, this tensor called holomorphic curvature tensor and reduces to the Riemannian curvature tensor R in an almost Kaehler manifold. Then M. Prvanović gave some properties about such tensor.

In this work, first the holomorphic curvature tensor of generalized complex space forms are presented. Moreover, we investigate generalized complex space forms satisfying some conditions on the holomorphic curvature tensor. It is proved that the generalized complex space form $M(f_1, f_2)$ of dimensional (m > 2) satisfying HR = 0 is Einstein.

Finally, Walker type identities for holomorphic curvature tensor of generalized complex space forms are studied. We show that an m-dimensional (m > 2) generalized complex space form satisfies Walker type identities.

Keywords Generalized complex space form · Holomorphic curvature tensor · Pseudosymmetric manifold · Tachibana tensor · Walker type identity

- [1] Bharathi M. C., and Bagewadi C. S., On generalized complex space forms, IOSR Journal of Mathematics, 10: 44–46, 2014.
- [2] De U.C., and Sarkar A., On the projective curvature tensor of generalized Sasakian space forms, Quaestines Mathematicae, 33: 245–252, 2010.
- [3] Deszcz R., On pseudosymmetric spaces, Bull. Soc. Math. Belg. Ser., A 44: 1–34, 1992.
- [4] Deszcz R., and Hotloś M., Remarks on Riemannian manifolds satisfying a certain curvature condition imposed on the Ricci tensor, Prace. Nauk. Pol. Szczec., 11: 23–34, 1989.

^{*}Corresponding Author's E-mail: pegah.mutlu@gedik.edu.tr

- [5] Deszcz R., and Yaprak Ş., Curvature properties of certain pseudosymmetric manifolds, Publ. Math. Debr., 45: 334–345, 1994.
- [6] Olszak Z., The existence of generalized complex space form, Israel J. Math, 65: 214–218, 1989.
- [7] Prvanović M., On a curvature tensor of Kaehler type in an almost Hermitian and almost para-Hermitian manifold, Mat. Vesnik, 50: 57–64, 1998.
- [8] Prvanović M., Conformally invariant tensors of an almost Hermitian manifold associated with the holomorphic curvature tensor, J. Geom., 103: 89–101, 2012.
- [9] Sarkar A., and De U.C., Some curvature properties of generalized Sasakian space forms, Lobachevskii journal of mathematics, 33: 22–27, 2012.



THE GENERAL SYSTEM OF GERDJIKOV-IVANOV EQUATION

Mehmet UNLU^{1,*}, Ramazan ERCAN²

¹Recep Tayyip Erdogan University, Department of Mathematics, 53100 Rize, Turkey ²Saint Louis University, Department of Mathematics and Statistics, St. Louis, MO 63103, USA

ABSTRACT

Our goal in this study is to present solutions to the Gerdjikov-Ivanov system by developing the Marchenko method for a first-order system of two linear ordinary differential equations. We construct the potentials and the scattering solutions to the linear system from the solution to the Marchenko system. Such a linear system arises in the solution to a pair of integrable nonlinear partial differential equations known as the derivative nonlinear Schrödinger equations via the so-called inverse scattering transform method.

Keywords Marchenko method · General derivative NLS system · Inverse scattering transform · Gerdjikov-Ivanov system

- [1] Aktosun T. and Ercan R., The generalized Marchenko method in the inverse scattering problem for a first-order linear system, preprint, arXiv:2203.02663, 2022.
- [2] Chen H. H., Lee Y. C., and Liu C. S., Integrability of nonlinear Hamiltonian systems by inverse scattering method, Phys. Scr. 20, 490–492, 1979.
- [3] Kaup D. J. and Newell A. C., An exact solution for a derivative nonlinear Schrödinger equation, J. Math. Phys. 19, 798–801, 1978.
- [4] Tsuchida T. and Wadati M., New integrable systems of derivative nonlinear Schrödinger equations with multiple components, Phys. Lett. A 257, 53–64, 1999.

^{*}*Corresponding Author's E-mail: mehmet.unlu@erdogan.edu.tr*



ON MIN MATRICES INVOLVING CHEBYSHEV POLYNOMIALS

Fatih YILMAZ^{1,*}, Samet ARPACI¹, Aybüke ERTAŞ¹

¹ Department of Mathematics, Hacı Bayram Veli University, 06900, Ankara, Turkey

ABSTRACT

In the present study, by inspiring the studies in literature, we construct one type of Min matrix from symmetric family whose entries are Chebyshev polynomials of the first kind. Afterwards, we investigate some linear algebraic properties and obtain inequalities by using matrix norms. Furthermore, we obtain some summation identities for Chebyshev polynomials. In addition to all these, we shed light on the results we obtained to boost the clarity of our paper with the illustrative examples.

Keywords Min matrices \cdot Chebyshev polynomials \cdot Matrix norm \cdot Determinant \cdot Inverse

- [1] S. Yamaç Akbiyik, M. Akbiyik, F. Yılmaz, One Type of Symmetric Matrix with Harmonic Pell Entries, Its Inversion, Permanents and Some Norms, Mathematics, 9 (2021), 539.
- [2] J. C. Mason, D. C. Handscomb, Chebyshev Polynomials, Chapman and Hall, New York, 2003.
- [3] P.J. Davis, Circulant Matrices, Wiley, NewYork, 1979.
- [4] F. Zhang, Matrix Theory, Basic Results and Techniques, Springer, New York, 2011.
- [5] R. Bhatia, Min matrices and mean matrices, Math. Intelligencer, 33 (2011), 22–28.
- [6] M. Mattila, P. Haukkanen, Studying the various properties of Min and Max matrices-elemantary vs. more advanced methods, Spec. Matrices, 4 (2016), 101–109.
- [7] R. A. Horn, The hadamard product. Proc. Symp. Appl. Math. 40 (1990), 87-169.
- [8] T.J. Rivlin, The Chebyshev Polynomials: From Approximation Theory to Algebra and Number Theory, J.Wiley and Sons, New York, 1990.

^{*}*Corresponding Author's E-mail: fatih.yilmaz@hbv.edu.tr*



ON CIRCULANT MATRICES INVOLVING FIBONACCI POLYNOMIALS

Fatih YILMAZ^{1,*}, Aybüke ERTAŞ¹, Samet ARPACI¹

¹ Department of Mathematics, Hacı Bayram Veli University, 06900, Ankara, Turkey

ABSTRACT

In this paper, we consider circulant matrices associated with Fibonacci polynomials, i.e., $C_{F_n} = Circ(F_1(x), F_2(x), F_3(x), ..., F_{n-1}(x))$. Then, we compute its determinant by following two different ways. For this purpose, we benefit from the Chebyshev polynomials of the second kind and exploit some matrix operations. Moreover, we obtain Euclidean norm, upper and lower bounds for $||C_{F_n}||_2$. Finally, we illustrate our result in tables and give a graph of C_{F_n} .

Keywords Fibonacci polynomials · Determinants · Circulant matrices

- [1] Davis P.J., Circulant Matrices, Wiley, NewYork, 1979.
- [2] Zhang F., Matrix Theory, Basic Results and Techniques, Springer, New York, 2011.
- [3] Mason J. C., and Hanscomb D. C., Chebyshev Polynomials, CRC Press Company, 2003.
- [4] Koshy T., Fibonacci and Lucas Numbers with Applications, Toronto, New York, NY, USA, 2001.
- [5] Doman, B. G. S. and Williams ,J. K., Fibonacci and Lucas Polynomials, Mathematical Proceedings of the Cambridge Philosophical Society, 90: 385-387,1981.

^{*}Corresponding Author's E-mail: fatih.yilmaz@hbv.edu.tr



APPROXIMATION BY NEW MODIFICATION OF BERNSTEIN OPERATORS

Kadir KANAT^{1,*}, Melek SOFYALIOĞLU¹, Halime ALTUNTAŞ¹

¹ Ankara Hacı Bayram Veli University, Polatlı Faculty of Science and Arts, Department of Mathematics, 06900, Ankara, Turkey

Abstract

In this presentation, we investigate a new modification of Bernstein-Kantorovich operators. We obtain the rate of convergence by means of the modulus of continuity. We demonstrate the Voronovskaya-type theorem for the newly constructed operator. We represent some illustrative graphics to show the convergence of the constructed operators and we give some numerical results.

Keywords Bernstein-Kantorovich operators · Modulus of continuity · Voronovskaya-type theorem

- [1] Ditzian Z., Inverse theorems for multidimensional Bernstein operators, Pac. J. Math., 121(2): 293–319, 1986.
- [2] Pop O.T., and Farcaş M.D., About the bivariate operators of Kantorovich type, New Series, 78(1): 43–52, 2009.
- [3] Aral A., Cardenas-Morales D., and Garrancho P., Bernstein-type operators that reproduce exponential functions, J. Math. Inequal, 12(3): 861–872, 2018.
- [4] Morigi S., and Neamtu M., Some results for a class of generalized polynomials, Advances in computational mathematics, 12(2): 133–149, 2000.
- [5] Acu A.M., Aral A., and Raşa I., Generalized Bernstein Kantorovich operators, Carpathian Journal of Mathematics, 38(1): 1–12, 2022.

^{*}*Corresponding Author's E-mail: kadir.kanat@hbv.edu.tr*



A GENERALIZATION OF SZÁSZ-KANTOROVICH OPERATORS BY USING SPECIAL POLYNOMIALS

Kadir KANAT¹, Melek SOFYALIOĞLU^{1,*}, Feride ÇETİN¹

¹Department of Mathematics, Polatlı Faculty of Science and Letters, Ankara Hacı Bayram Veli University, Ankara, 06900, Turkey

ABSTRACT

In this talk, a new generalization of Szász-Kantorovich operators involving Appell polynomials is introduced. The convergence theorem of the newly constructed operators is obtained. Moreover, some approximation results are studied. Also, approximation results of Gould-Hopper polynomials and Hermite polynomials are given. Finally, Voronovskaya-type theorem is presented.

Keywords Appell Polynomials \cdot Gould-Hopper Polynomials \cdot Hermite Polynomials

- [1] Varma, Serhan, Sezgin Sucu, and Gürhan İçöz. "Generalization of Szász operators involving Brenke type polynomials." Computers and Mathematics with Applications 64.2 (2012): 121-127.
- [2] Gould, Henry W., and A. T. Hopper. "Operational formulas connected with two generalizations of Hermite polynomials." (1962): 51-63.
- [3] Douak, Khalfa. "The relation of the d-orthogonal polynomials to the Appell polynomials." Journal of computational and applied mathematics 70.2 (1996): 279-295.
- [4] Büyükyazıcı, İbrahim, et al. "Approximation by Chlodowsky type Jakimovski–Leviatan operators." Journal of Computational and Applied Mathematics 259 (2014): 153-163.
- [5] Nasiruzzaman, Md, and A. F. Aljohani. "Approximation by parametric extension of Szász-Mirakjan-Kantorovich operators involving the Appell polynomials." Journal of Function Spaces 2020 (2020): 1-11.
- [6] Milovanović, Gradimir V., M. Mursaleen, and Md Nasiruzzaman. "Modified Stancu type Dunkl generalization of Szász–Kantorovich operators." Revista de la Real Academia de Ciencias Exactas, Físicas y Naturales. Serie A. Matemáticas 112.1 (2018): 135-151.

^{*}Corresponding Author's E-mail: melek.sofyalioglu@hbv.edu.tr



SERVICE-LEARNING ACTIVITY IN STATISTICS COURSE

Araceli QUEIRUGA-DIOS^{1,*}, Deolinda RASTEIRO², Beatriz SÁNCHEZ BARBERO¹, Ángel MARTÍN DEL REY¹, Ion MIERLUS-MAZILU³, María Jesús SANTOS SÁNCHEZ¹

¹Universidad de Salamanca (Spain) ²Instituto Superior de Engenharia de Coimbra (Portugal) ³Technical University of Civil Engineering of Bucharest (Romania)

ABSTRACT

Learning through service, a combination of community-based activities with learning objectives, or experiential education, are some features of service-learning (SL) methodology, which improves the realities where the service is performed, and which considers who receives the service as a central element [5]. The difference between voluntary and SL is that this is developed while learning. Several courses implement this approach as part of its methodology, this is the case of Engineering Design [1], Mechanical Engineering [3], Economics [2], Medicine [6], Statistic [4], etc. A SL activity was proposed to undergraduate sophomore students from Industrial Engineering degrees. Students developed a teamwork as part of their statistics course collaborating with a local entity. To make this possible, teachers identified a community need in line with the course contents and after that students were invited to participate. A teamwork was proposed to all students and one group decided to collaborate with an association that helps families in need. The work consisted of creating a database with the data gathered by volunteers and after that present a basic descriptive analysis. The built database and the analysis performed were grounded on the association needs to better help the families that it serves. This SL activity was assessed as part of the course activities.

Keywords Service-Learning · Statistic · Industrial Engineering

- [1] Bernardoni, S., Alcalá, M. R., and Alcala, M. R. (2009). "Ac 2009-2181: utilizing the Xo computer for undergraduate research and learning opportunities," in 2009 at the ASEE Annual Conference (Austin, TX).
- [2] Hervani, A., & Helms, M. M. (2004). Increasing creativity in economics: The service learning project. Journal of Education for Business, 79(5), 267-274.

^{*}Corresponding Author's E-mail: queirugadios@usal.es

IV. International Conference on Mathematics and Its Applications in Science and Engineering (ICMASE 2023)

- [3] Pazos, P., Cima, F., Kidd, J., Ringleb, S., Ayala, O., Gutierrez, K., & Kaipa, K. (2020). Enhancing teamwork skills through an engineering service-learning collaboration. In 2020 ASEE Virtual Annual Conference Content Access, Virtual Online.
- [4] Root, R., & Thorme, T. (2001). Community-based projects in applied statistics: Using service-learning to enhance student understanding. The American Statistician, 55(4), 326-331.
- [5] Salam, M., Awang Iskandar, D. N., Ibrahim, D. H. A., & Farooq, M. S. (2019). Service learning in higher education: A systematic literature review. Asia Pacific Education Review, 20, 573-593.
- [6] Stetten, N. E., Black, E. W., Edwards, M., Schaefer, N., & Blue, A. V. (2019). Interprofessional service learning experiences among health professional students: A systematic search and review of learning outcomes. Journal of Interprofessional Education & Practice, 15, 60-69.



METHOD OF HYDRODYNAMIC IMAGES AND QUANTUM CALCULUS IN FOCK-BARGMANN REPRESENTATION OF QUANTUM STATES

Oktay K PASHAEV^{1,*}

Department of Mathematics, Izmir Institute of Technology, Izmir, 35430 Türkiye

Abstract

The hydrodynamical analogy is a fruitful approach in many fields of physical science and mathematics, including electromagnetic theory, quantum mechanics, nuclear physics, dynamical systems and complex analysis. In quantum mechanics, the hydrodynamic representation of wave function by Madelung gives intuitive picture of probability flow, propagating in quantum fluid. In complex analysis, hydrodynamic interpretation gives meaning to an analytic function as descriptive of incompressible and irrotational fluid in plane and classification of singularities of the function by point vortices, sinks and sources, etc. Here we propose a new approach to quantum states in Fock space in terms of classical hydrodynamics. By Madelung type conformal mapping of entire complex analytic function, representing the a wave function of quantum states in Fock-Bargmann representation, we define the complex potential, describing these quantum states by incompressible and irrotational classical hydrodynamic flow. In our approach, zeros of the wave function appear as a set of point vortices in plane with the same strength. This allows us to interpret these vortices as images of the one real vortex in a bounded domain, with vanishing normal velocity across the boundary curve. For simple domains like the wedge, the strip and the annular domain, the distribution of the images is determined by the wedge theorem, the strip theorem and the two circle theorem, respectively. For the strip domain, the infinite set of periodic images is described by elliptic functions. For the wedge and the annular domain it can be represented naturally by the q-periodic functions of the quantum or the q-calculus, where the stretching from the origin and the rotation, result from inversion in two circles and reflection in two lines, correspondingly. For the wedge domain, when complex number q is a root of unity, $q^{2n} = 1$, the kaleidoscope of finite number of images is located at vertices of regular polygon and possess the quantum group symmetry. For the annular domain with real q, the infinite set of images is described by Jackson q-exponential functions. We show that these functions represent

^{*}Corresponding Author's E-mail: oktaypashaev@iyte.edu.tr

the wave functions of quantum coherent states of the q-deformed quantum oscillator in q-Fock-Bargmann representation and describe the infinite set of point vortices, distributed in geometric progression. For the so called displaced coherent states, created by adding n quanta to the coherent states, we obtain the set of point vortices in the displaced positions. The corresponding kaleidoscope of vortex images in Fock-Barmann representation of displaced quantum states and questions of separability and entanglement of the states are discussed. This work was supported by BAP project 2022IYTE-1-0002.

Keywords quantum calculus \cdot Fock-Bargmann representation \cdot vortex images \cdot coherent states

- [1] Fock V., Verallgemeinerung und Lösung der Diracschen statistischen Gleichung, Z. Physik, 49: 339-357, 1928.
- [2] Bargmann V., On a Hilbert space of analytic functions and an associated integral transform Part I, Commun. Pure Appl. Math., XIV: 187-214, 1961.
- [3] Pashaev O.K., Variations on a theme of q-oscillator, Physica Scripta, 90: 074010, 2015.
- [4] Pashaev O.K., Quantum calculus of classical vortex images, integrable models and quantum states, J. Physics: Conf. Series, 766: 012015, 2016.
- [5] Pashaev O.K., Two-circles theorem, q-periodic functions and entangled qubit states, J. Physics: Conf. Series, 482: 012033, 2014.
- [6] Pashaev O.K., Quantum group symmetry for kaleidoscope of hydrodynamic images and quantum states, J. Physics: Conf. Series, 1194: 012087, 2019.
- [7] Perelomov A., Generalized Coherent States and Their Applications, Springer, Berlin, 1986.
- [8] Kac V., and Cheung P., Quantum Calculus, Springer, New York, 2002.
- [9] Pashaev O.K., and Yilmaz O., Vortex images and q-elementary functions, J. Phys. A: Math. Theor., 41: 135207, 2008.
- [10] Pashaev O.K., and Kocak A., Kaleidoscope of classical vortex images and quantum coherent states, V.G. Kac et al.(eds.), Symmetries, Differential Equations and Applications, Springer, 266: 179-199, 2018.
- [11] Kocak A., and Pashaev O.K., Special functions with mod n symmetry and kaleidoscope of quantum coherent states, J. Physics: Conf. Series, 1194: 012059, 2019.



ALGEBRAIC AND QUANTUM MECHANICAL APPROACH TO SPINORS

Tahir MANZOOR^{1,*}, S.N. HASAN¹

¹Department of Mathematics, Maulana Azad National Urdu University, Hyderabad-500032, India

ABSTRACT

Clifford algebras and quantum mechanics are closely associated to each other. We are familiar with some popular terms like algebra, light polarization, quantum spin etc. Dirac spinors, Majorana spinors and Weyl spinors as subspaces of Clifford algebras with some remarkable algebraic features are to be discussed in particular. Furthermore, we are interested to exhibit how quantum spin state and classical polarization of light waves can be derived from one another along with the Bloch sphere and the Poincare sphere representations.

Keywords Bispinors $\cdot Cl_2$ and Cl_3 algebras \cdot Lie algebras \cdot Lie groups \cdot Lorentz transformation

^{*}*Corresponding Author's E-mail: tahirulhaq33@gmail.com*



A NUMERICAL APPROACH FOR A SINGULARLY PERTURBED MIXED TYPE DIFFERENTIAL-DIFFERENCE EQUATION

Erkan CİMEN^{1,*}

¹Van Yuzuncu Yil University, Van, TURKEY

ABSTRACT

In this paper, we deal with the singularly perturbed boundary value problem (SP-BVP) for a class of first-order differential-difference equations with the mixed type (delay as well as advance). These problems appear in science and engineering fields such as the study of human pupil light reflex, first-exit problems in neurobiology, models of physiological processes and diseases, optimal control theory, models of climate systems, optically bistable devices and signal transmission, quantum photonic systems ([1, 2] and reference therein). Especially, model of nerve excitation and propagation of electronic impulses, nerves has been described these equations, which are usually known as the FitzHugh–Nagumo equations, which are considered as electric cables, through which electric current flows (for more details see [3]).

On the other hand, for small values of perturbation parameter ε , standard numerical methods for solving SPBVPs are unstable and do not give accurate results. Therefore, it is important to develop suitable numerical methods for solving these problems, whose accuracy does not depend on the parameter value ε , i.e., methods that are convergent ε -uniformly. Some of these are adapted meshes such as Shishkin mesh, and Bakhvalov mesh used together with the finite difference method [4].

We obtain the numerical solution to the problem under consideration by using the finite difference method for the adapted mesh. Firstly, we present some important properties of the exact solution of the problem, which are necessary for error analysis of the method. Next, in order to the numerical solution of this problem, we use a fitted difference scheme on a piecewise uniform mesh of Shishkin type which is accomplished by the method of integral identities with the interpolating quadrature rules with remainder term in integral form. It has shown that it gives almost first-order uniform convergence in the discrete maximum norm, independently of the perturbation parameter. Finally, we present the numerical experiments that their results support of the theory.

Keywords Singular perturbation \cdot Differential-difference equation \cdot Uniform convergence

^{*}Corresponding Author's E-mail: cimenerkan@hotmail.com

- [1] Lange C.G., and Miura R.M., Singular perturbation analysis of boundary value problems for differential-difference equations. SIAM J. Appl. Math., 42(3): 502-531, 1982.
- [2] Cimen E., Uniformly convergent numerical method for a singularly perturbed differential difference equation with mixed type. Bull. Belg. Math. Soc. Simon Stevin, 27(5): 755-774, 2020.
- [3] Lima P.M., Ford N.J., and Lumb P.M., Computational methods for a mathematical model of propagation of nerve impulses in myelinated axons. Appl. Numer. Math., 85, 38–53, 2014.
- [4] Miller J.J.H., O'Riordan E., and Shishkin G.I., Fitted Numerical Methods for Singular Perturbation Problems. Rev. Edt. World Scientific, Singapore, 2012.



ON A NEW TYPE DUAL HYPERBOLIC NUMBERS

Ece Gülşah ÇOLAK^{1,*}, Nazmiye Gönül BİLGİN¹, Yüksel SOYKAN¹

¹Zonguldak Bülent Ecevit University

ABSTRACT

Fibonacci numbers and the golden ratio associated with these numbers have been the focus of attention among mathematicians for many years. The Fibonacci numbers is a sequence of numbers which is given also by the second order linear recurrence relation. So are the Fibonacci-Lucas numbers. Over the years, new number sequences have also been defined and examined their several properties. One of them is the generalized John number sequences defined by Soykan last year. This sequence, being related to Pell sequence, can also given by the third order linear recurrence relation and its special cases when the initial values fixed are John and John-Lucas numbers. On the other hand, hypercomplex number systems extends the real numbers, e.g. complex numbers, hyperbolic numbers and dual numbers. These number systems are in two dimensions and commutative. Hyperbolic numbers with complex coefficients being introduced in the first half of 19th century are in 4 dimensions. In the recent past, the commutative dual numbers with complex coefficients were introduced. Similarly, hyperbolic numbers with dual coefficients were introduced by Akar, Yüce and Sahin and they called these numbers with dual hyperbolic numbers. The dual hyperbolic numbers form a commutative ring, real vector space and an algebra. After this number system defined, Fibonacci, Pell, Jacobsthal, etc. numbers were introduced in dual hyperbolic sense by taking the real, the dual, the hyperbolic and the dual hyperbolic part of the dual hyperbolic numbers being taken as the terms of Fibonacci, Pell, Jacobsthal, etc. in a certain rule, respectively. However, there has been no work about the generalization of John numbers in dual hyperbolic sense. In this paper, we introduce a new type dual hyperbolic sequence of numbers, which will be called by dual hyperbolic generalized John numbers. As special cases, we deal with dual hyperbolic John and dual hyperbolic John-Lucas numbers. We present several important properties of this new sequence, such as Binet's formulas, generating functions and the summation formulas. Moreover, we give special identities and matrices related with these sequences.

Keywords Dual Hyperbolic Generalized John Numbers · Dual Hyperbolic John Numbers · Dual Hyperbolic John-Lucas Numbers

^{*}Corresponding Author's E-mail: egsavkli@beun.edu.tr

- Cheng H.H. and Thompson S., Dual Polynomials and Complex Dual Numbers for Analysis of Spatial Mechanisms, Proceedings of ASME 24th Biennial Mechanisms Conference, Irvine, CA, August, 19-22, 1996.
- [2] Akar M., Yüce S. and Şahin Ş., On the Dual Hyperbolic Numbers and the Complex Hyperbolic Numbers, Journal of Computer Science and Computational Mathematics, 8(1): 1-6, 2018.
- [3] Cihan A., Azak A.Z., Güngör M.A. and Tosun M., A Study on Dual Hyperbolic Fibonacci and Lucas Numbers, An. Şt. Univ. Ovidius Constanta, 27(1): 35-48, 2019.
- [4] Güngör M.A. and Cihan A., On Dual-Hyperbolic Numbers with Generalized Fibonacci and Lucas Numbers Components, Fundamental Journal of Mathematics and Applications, 2(2): 162-172, 2019.
- [5] Soykan Y., Generalized John Numbers, Journal of Progressive Research in Mathematics, 19(1): 2022.



A FINITE DIFFERENCE METHOD FOR COUPLED SYSTEM OF SINGULARLY PERTURBED DIFFERENTIAL EQUATIONS

Sevket UNCU^{1,*}, Erkan CİMEN¹

¹Van Yuzuncu Yil University, Van, TURKEY

ABSTRACT

System of differential equations occur in many scientific fields such as biology, chemistry, etc. Traditionally, these models occur in the mathematical formulations of the various problems such as deep neural network, electric circuits, feedback control systems, iodate-arsenous, acid reactions, cell growth, etc [1]. A class of these systems are systems of singularly perturbed differential equation. These equations play a significant role in modeling of applied sciences. For instance Henri's enzyme–substrate reaction scheme can be modelled as a system of singularly perturbed problem [3].

In this study we deal with a initial value problem for system of partially singularly perturbed equations. These type systems contain small parameter (ε) which multiplying by the first derivative of one of the unknown functions. Unknown function multiplied by small parameter is called fast variable, the other function is slow variable. The solution of singularly perturbed problem varies rapidly where it has initial layer, meanwhile the solution of unperturbed problem changes more slowly [4].

In such problems, classical methods can not be applied due to the existence of boundary (or initial) layer. Therefore, adapted meshs gain more importance at this juncture for numerical solutions. Robust numerical techniques have been developed for singularly perturbed problems, but for system of equations a few results are reported in the literature, see [2]. For the past two decades, studies on the numerical solution of systems of singularly perturbed differential equation are quite remarkable.

We establish a difference scheme on Bakhvalov mesh and Shishkin mesh with the remainder terms in integral form. We estimate error and stability anaylsis in both meshs and prove that the numerical approaches generated by the method presented are essentially first order convergent in the maximum norm, uniformly with respect to the ε -perturbation parameter. Finally we present an example for illustrate the theoretical results provided. The computational results for presented method are displayed in tables and graphics.

^{*}Corresponding Author's E-mail: uncusevket@gmail.com

Keywords Singular perturbation \cdot System of differential equation \cdot Finite difference method \cdot Uniform convergence

- [1] Dimitrov S., and Markov S., Metabolic rate constants: some computational aspects, Math. Comput. Simul., 133, 91-110, 2017.
- [2] Meenakshi P.M., Valarmathi S., and Miller J.J.H., Solving a partially singularly perturbed initial value problem on Shishkin meshes, Appl. Math. Comput., 215(9), 3170-3180, 2010.
- [3] Miller J.J.H., and O'Riordan E. Robust numerical method for a singularly perturbed problem arising in the modelling of enzyme kinetics, Biomath, 9(2), 1-12, ID-2008227, 2020.
- [4] Roos H.G., Stynes M., and Tobiska L., Robust Numerical Methods for Singularly Perturbed Differential Equations, 2nd. Edt., Springer-Verlag, Berlin, 2008.



FEKETE-SZEGÖ PROBLEM FOR CERTAIN SUBCLASSES OF ANALYTIC FUNCTIONS RELATED TO THE COMBINATION OF DIFFERENTIAL OPERATORS

Ali İhsan KOÇ^{1,*}, Erhan DENİZ¹, Sercan KAZIMOĞLU¹

¹Department of Mathematics, Faculty of Science and Letters, Kafkas University, 36100 Kars, Turkey

ABSTRACT

In this study, we introduce and deal with some new subclasses of analytic functions defined by the combination of Deniz-Özkan and Ruscheweyh differential operators, and obtain coefficient estimates and Fekete–Szegö inequalities for these new subclasses.

Keywords Analytic functions \cdot Univalent functions \cdot Fekete-Szegö problem \cdot Starlike and convex function of complex order \cdot Deniz-Özkan and Ruscheweyh differential operator

- [1] Deniz E. and Orhan H., The Fekete-Szegö problem for a generalized subclass of analytic functions, Kyungpook Math. J., 50: 37–47, 2010.
- [2] Deniz E. and Özkan Y., Subclasses of Analytic Functions Defined by a New Differential Operator. Acta Univ. Apulensis, 40: 85–95, 2014.
- [3] Fekete M. and Szegö G., Eine Bemerkung über ungerade schlichte Funktionen, J. Lond. Math. Soc., 8: 85–89, 1933.
- [4] Kazımoğlu S. and Deniz E., Fekete-Szegö problem for generalized bisubordinate functions of complex order, Hacet. J. Math. Stat., 49(5): 1695– 1705, 2020.
- [5] Ruscheweyh S., New criteria for univalent functions. Proc. Am. Math. Soc., 49: 109–115, 1975.

^{*}Corresponding Author's E-mail: alihsan36@hotmail.com



STATISTICAL MODELING OF AVERAGE NUSSELT NUMBER

Bengisen Pekmen GERİDONMEZ^{1,*}

¹*TED University, Department of Mathematics, Ankara, Turkey*

ABSTRACT

In this study, an important heat transfer and fluid flow parameter is statistically modeled by using the data obtained from a numerical process. The two dimensional (2D), time dependent dimensionless equations of natural convection flow is numerically solved by global radial basis function (RBF) method. A trained data and a distinct test data, in which dimensionless numbers Rayleigh and Prandtl numbers are inputs and average Nusselt number is the output, are generated by saving the numerical results. Then, average Nusselt number is modelled by Trilayer Neural Network (TNN). A 2D curve fitting idea in view of interpolation is also examined. In terms of mean squared error metric, TNN gives the best goodness of fit results comparing to curve fitting. On the other side, it is shown that curve fitting is also an alternative for modelling. This modeling issue enables one to get the desired result without making heavy numerical calculations many times.

Keywords Trilayer Neural Networks \cdot global RBF \cdot average Nusselt number \cdot curve fitting

- [1] Fasshauer G.E., Meshfree Approximation Methods with Matlab. World Sci. Publications, Singapore, 2007.
- [2] Fasshauer, G.E., and McCourt, M., Kernel-based Approximation Methods using MATLAB. World Scientific Publications, Singapore, 2015.
- [3] David de vahl G., Natural Convection of Air in A Square Cavity: A bench mark numerical solution, International Journal for Numerical Methods in Fluids, 3 (1983) 249–264.
- [4] Chow, T.W.S., and Cho, S.Y., Neural Networks and Computing, Imperial College Press, 2007.

^{*}*Corresponding Author's E-mail: bengisenpekmen@gmail.com*



SOLO TAXONOMY IN THE EVALUATION OF ENGINEERING STUDENTS: A CASE STUDY IN MATHEMATICS.

Cristina M.R. CARIDADE^{1,2,*}, Verónica PEREIRA¹

¹Polytechnic Institute of Coimbra, Coimbra Institute of Engineering, Coimbra, Portugal. ²CICGE, DGAOT, FCUP, Vila Nova de Gaia, Portugal.

ABSTRACT

With the development of skills, considered essential for the academic and professional path, the teacher seeks to discover how to assess these skills in an authentic way. Student assessment is one of the key points of their learning process. It is important that teachers use methodological tools, such as the SOLO taxonomy (Structure of Observed Learning Outcomes), to assess their students' learning [1, 2]. This study intends to be another contribution to mirror and think about assessment as an integral part of the teaching process and, above all, of learning, due to its important role in the academic success of students and the significant impact it has displayed in the improvement of learning. The main purpose of this study is to incite about the evaluation and in what way it can influence the teaching-learning process in the school environment. This is a qualitative investigation, which takes the SOLO taxonomy as an approach, through the analysis of evaluations carried out during the last 5 years in online and face-to-face tests of Mathematical Analysis of the 1st year of the Degree in Electrical and Computer Engineering. All the questions asked in the exams were categorized according to the type of knowledge the student should have in each answer. The results indicate that there are topics of the syllabus that are more frequent than others and that the complexity of the exam-type questions is different, with greater evidence between online and face-to-face exams. The grades accredited in each curricular topic are distributed according to their importance and the type of exam, with the SOLO index of the online exams, being higher than that of the face-to-face exams. In conclusion, this study reinforces the idea that assessment, when well operated and understood, works as a basis and efficiently contributes to the student learning process.

Keywords SOLO Taxonomy · skills · assessment · teaching and learning

References

[1] Filipe, M.A.E.R.: A Taxonomia SOLO nos Exames Nacionais de Matemática
 – 9° Ano. Universidade Nova de Lisboa. Lisboa - Portugal, pp. 189, (2011).

^{*}Corresponding Author's E-mail: caridade@isec.pt

IV. International Conference on Mathematics and Its Applications in Science and Engineering (ICMASE 2023)

http://hdl.handle.net/10362/8173

[2] Mol, S. M., Matos, D. A. S. (2021). Uma análise sobre a Taxonomia SOLO: aplicações na avaliação educacional. Estudos Em Avaliação Educacional, 30(75), 722-747. https://doi.org/10.18222/eae.v30i75.6593



IS COLLABORATIVE LEARNING A VOLUNTARY PROCESS?

D. M. L. DIAS RASTEIRO ^{1,2,*}, C.M.R CARIDADE ^{1,2,3}

¹Polytechnic Institute of Coimbra, ISEC, Coimbra, Portugal
 ²Applied Biomechanics Laboratory - ISEC, Coimbra, Portugal
 ³Centre for Research in Geo-Space Science (CICGE), Porto, Portugal

ABSTRACT

The process of learning Mathematics in Engineering courses has been extensively studied and investigated, with the use of Information and communication technologies (ICT) tools and digital platforms becoming increasingly prevalent in recent years. The years 2020 and 2021 were difficult years for students who were already attending higher education but also for those who were in the final years of secondary education preparing themselves to enter higher education. As a result of the pandemic, the teaching processes were adapted, and the assessments were the possible ones in the context that we all live and experienced. Thus, students arriving at higher education, and even those already there, need innovative and stimulating teaching and learning practices that quickly motivate and involve them in the teaching/learning processes. At the same time, ICT tools and digital platforms have seen their indiscriminate use in the last two years, not without at times, teachers and even students questioning whether they were being used in the best possible way and whether they were being taken full advantage of. Simultaneously, face-to-face group work and involvement with the needs of colleagues lost some space for achievement and effectiveness. The preference, assumed or disguised, for individual work and the visible reduction in solidarity with colleagues with greater difficulties, except probably in niches of friendship that come from previous school groups, was an issue/question that was posed at the beginning of this study. However, the COVID-19 pandemic has highlighted the need for innovative and stimulating teaching and learning practices that motivate and involve students in the learning process. Collaborative learning (CL) has been proposed as a solution, with the Padlet platform (https://padlet.com/) being a popular tool for facilitating such interactions. In this paper, the authors propose two collaborative learning platforms, one for students of Statistical Methods in Informatics Engineering and other for Mathematical Analysis I, with the aim of creating a space for virtual interaction among students. The study enrols 533 students from Informatics Engineering, many of whom are student workers, and from Mechanical Engineering 20 students,

^{*}Corresponding Author's E-mail: deolinda.rasteiro@gmail.com

who were divided into small groups to foster teamwork and cooperation. The students are encouraged to investigate the topics taught in class, using bibliographical references and creative resources to deepen their understanding of the subject matter. The Padlet platform is used to facilitate collaboration and engagement ([1], [2], [3]), allowing students to share their resolutions of proposed exercises, correct or comment on colleagues' work, and access all work developed by their peers. In the case of Informatics Engineering graduation, the professors corrected the students' resolutions regularly, evaluating their involvement in the learning process and their collaboration and solidarity with colleagues. The paper discusses the results of this experiment, including the level of student participation, their collaboration with colleagues, and their overall performance in the course, highlighting the evidence of when it is, or it is not fruitful to use this type of activities, and which are their probable causes.

Keywords Collaborative Learning · Active Methodologies · Padlet · Mathematics · Solidarity

- Fisher, C. D. (2017). Padlet: An online tool for learner engagement and collaboration. Academy of Management Learning and Education, 16(1), 163-165. https://doi.org/10.5465/amle.2017.0055.
- [2] Mehta K. J., Miletich I., and Detyna M. (2021). Content-specific differences in Padlet perception for collaborative learning amongst undergraduate students. Research in Learning Technology, 29. https://doi.org/10.25304/rlt.v29.2551
- [3] Q. Zhi and M. Su (2015), "Enhance Collaborative Learning by Visualizing Process of Knowledge Building with Padlet," 2015 International Conference of Educational Innovation through Technology (EITT), Wuhan, China, 2015, pp. 221-225, doi: 10.1109/EITT.2015.54.



ON UNIVALENCE CRITERIA FOR ANALYTIC FUNCTIONS DEFINED BY A LINEAR MULTIPLIER DIFFERENTIAL OPERATOR

Ufuk ÖZTÜRK^{1,*}, Erhan DENİZ¹, Sercan KAZIMOĞLU¹

¹Department of Mathematics, Faculty of Science and Letters, Kafkas University, 36100 Kars, Turkey

ABSTRACT

In this paper we obtain sufficient conditions for univalence of analytic functions defined by a linear multiplier differential operator. Also, we give some results for special cases of parameters.

Keywords Linear multiplier differential operator \cdot Analytic functions \cdot Univalent functions

- [1] Becker J., Löwnersche Differential gleichung und quasi-konform fortsetzbare schlichte funktionen, J. Reine Angew. Math., 255: 23–43, 1972.
- [2] Deniz E. and Orhan H., The Fekete-Szegö problem for a generalized subclass of analytic functions, Kyungpook Math. J., 50: 37–47, 2010.
- [3] Goodman A. W., Univalent Functions, Vol.I, and II, Mariner, Tampa, Florida, 1983.
- [4] Ozaki S. and Nunokawa M., The Schwarzian derivative and univalent functions, Proc. Amer. Math. Soc., 33(2): 392–394, 1972.
- [5] Pascu N. N., On the univalence criterion of Becker, Mathematica, Cluj-Napoca, Tome, 29(52): 175–176, 1987.
- [6] Tudor H., A sufficient condition for univalence, General Math., 17(1): 89–94, 2009.

^{*}Corresponding Author's E-mail: ufuk1985@hotmail.com



Application of Discrete Wavelet Transform and Tree-Based Ensemble Machine Learning for Modeling of Particulate Matter Concentration

Maya STOIMENOVA-MINOVA^{1,*}, Snezhana GOCHEVA-ILIEVA¹, Atanas IVANOV¹

¹University of Plovdiv Paisii Hilendarski, Faculty of Mathematics and Informatics, 24 Tsar Asen Str., 4000 Plovdiv, Bulgaria

ABSTRACT

The study of air pollution is an extremely important and urgent problem to be solved on a global and local scale. In this field, huge arrays of measurement data are accumulating, for the analysis of which various approaches based on mathematical, statistical, and machine learning (ML) methods are developed. In this paper, we investigate the application of different discrete wavelet transforms (DWT) families, coupled with state-of-the-art ML algorithms to predict concentrations of particulate matter PM10. Average daily data for this pollutant and several meteorological time series for a period of 630 days were used. A hybrid type models with wavelet decomposition of the initial time series and the application of predictive ensembles, were obtained. All models are cross-validated. The influence of the predictor meteorological time series was established. The models are applied for short-term pollution forecasts.

Keywords Time series \cdot Particulate matter \cdot Wavelet transform \cdot Ensemble tree learning \cdot Hybrid model

- [1] Mallat, S. G., A theory for Multiresolution signal decomposition: The wavelet representation, IEEE Transactions on Pattern Analysis and Machine Intelligence 11(7), 674–693, 1989.
- [2] Daubechies, I., Orthonormal bases of compactly supported wavelets, Communications on Pure and Applied Mathematics 41(7), 909–996, 1988.
- [3] Breiman L., Arcing classifiers, Annals of Statistics 26, 801–849, 1998.
- [4] Rhif, M., Ben Abbes, A., Farah, I. R., Martínez, B., and Sang, Y., Wavelet transform application for/in non-stationary time-series analysis: a review, Applied Sciences 9(7), p. 1345, 2019.

^{*}Corresponding Author's E-mail: mstoimenova@uni-plovdiv.bg



ON STRONG FUZZY PARTIAL METRIC SPACES

Elif GÜNER^{1,*}, Halis AYGÜN¹

¹ Department of Mathematics, Kocaeli University, Umuttepe Campus, 41380, Kocaeli - TURKEY

ABSTRACT

In the last decades, the studies of fuzzy metrics and their extensions have attracted the attention of many authors not only studying theoretical such as topological properties but also giving different applications to engineering problems. As an extension to the fuzzy setting of the concept of partial metric space, in literature, there are different fuzzy partial metric space approaches. One of them has been given by Gregori et al.[2], in 2019, which was introduced by giving the axiom of triangle inequality based on the residuum operators. This structure has been a more appropriate approach axiomatically as an extension of both the partial metric and fuzzy metric spaces when compared with the others. However, since it is not easy to find different examples when one works with the residuum operators, in the recent papers, we face to lack of examples of fuzzy partial metrics. Motivated by this fact, in this work, we aim to generate different fuzzy partial metrics from partial metrics and vice versa. For this aim, we first introduce the notion of strong fuzzy partial metric spaces due to establish a connection between the mentioned structures. Then we investigate some properties of strong fuzzy partial metric spaces and provide different examples by considering distinct t-norms. In continuation of this work, we give some techniques to construct strong fuzzy partial metrics from existing partial metrics by means of pseudo-inverse of the additive generator of continuous Archimedean t-norms. Besides, we take into consideration of the minimum t-norm which is continuous but non-Archimedean to obtain a similar construction with the same technique. We also show that strong fuzzy partial metrics can induce partial metrics via residuum operators. Moreover, we study whether the topology of the partial metric obtained coincides with the topology of the fuzzy partial metric from which constructs or not and vice versa.

Keywords partial metric \cdot fuzzy partial metric \cdot Archimedean t-norm \cdot pseudo-inverse function \cdot residuum operator

References

[1] Aygün H., Güner E., Miñana J. J., & Valero O., Fuzzy partial metric spaces and fixed point theorems, Mathematics, 10(17): 3092, 2022.

^{*}Corresponding Author's E-mail: elif.guner@kocaeli.edu.tr

IV. International Conference on Mathematics and Its Applications in Science and Engineering (ICMASE 2023)

- [2] Gregori V., Miñana J. J., & Miravet D., Fuzzy partial metric spaces, International Journal of General Systems, 48(3): 260-279, 2019.
- [3] Gregori V., Miñana J. J., & Miravet D., A duality relationship between fuzzy partial metrics and fuzzy quasi-metrics, Mathematics, 8(9): 1575, 2020.



TEACHING MATHEMATICS IN STEM EDUCATION.

Ion MIERLUS-MAZILU^{1,*}, Fatih YILMAZ²

¹Technical University of Civil Engineering Bucharest, Romania ²Ankara Haci Bayram Veli University, Türkiye

ABSTRACT

Teaching mathematics in STEM education is a vital component of developing students' analytical thinking, problem-solving skills, and logical reasoning abilities. To effectively teach mathematics in STEM, educators should employ strategies such as active learning, integration of technology, problem-based learning, differentiated instruction, cross-disciplinary connections, visualization, real-world applications, collaborative learning, formative assessment, and cultivating a growth mindset. The integration of technology plays a significant role in enhancing mathematics instruction. Educators can utilize interactive software, graphing calculators, spreadsheets, online resources, virtual manipulatives, coding and programming, online collaborative platforms, data visualization tools, virtual reality, augmented reality, online tutorials, and videos to engage students and deepen their understanding of mathematical concepts. By incorporating technology, teachers can provide dynamic visualizations, simulations, and interactive activities that enable students to explore multiple representations of mathematical ideas. Technology tools also support data analysis, graphing, problem-solving, and collaborative learning experiences. Furthermore, technology facilitates real-world connections and applications of mathematics, helping students recognize its relevance in various STEM fields. Overall, the integration of technology in mathematics instruction empowers students to actively participate in their learning, visualize abstract concepts, solve complex problems, and develop essential mathematical and STEM skills. By incorporating these strategies, educators can create a dynamic and engaging mathematics learning environment that prepares students for future STEM pursuits.

Keywords Mathematics education \cdot STEM education \cdot Teaching strategies \cdot Active learning \cdot Critical thinking

References

 Burrill, G., Allison, J., Breaux, G., McClain, K., Teaching Mathematics in the 21st Century: Methods and Activities for Grades 6-12. Alexandria, VA: ASCD, 2012.

^{*}Corresponding Author's E-mail: ion.mierlusmazilu@utcb.ro
- [2] English, L. D., Promoting STEM Learning with Real-World Problem Solving. Mathematics Teacher, 109(6), 436-441, 2016.
- [3] English, L. D., STEM Education K-12: Perspectives on Integration, International Journal of STEM Education, 3(3), 1-8, 2016.
- [4] Kilpatrick, J., Swafford, J., Findell, B., Adding It Up: Helping Children Learn Mathematics. Washington, DC: National Academies Press, 2001.
- [5] Van den Heuvel-Panhuizen, M., Drijvers, P., Realistic Mathematics Education. In S. Lerman (Ed.), Encyclopedia of Mathematics Education, Springer, 521-525, 2014.



AN APPLICATION OF LINEAR DIOPHANTINE FUZZY SETS TO THE EDGE DETECTION TECHNIQUES

Başak ALDEMİR^{1,*}, Elif GÜNER², Halis AYGÜN²

¹Department of Mathematics, Afyon Kocatepe University, Ahmet Necdet Sezer Campus 03200, Afyonkarahisar-TURKEY ²Department of Mathematics, Kocaeli University, Umuttepe Campus, 41380, Kocaeli-TURKEY

ABSTRACT

The utilization of fuzzy logic within the domain of digital image processing offers a lot of advantages such as encompassing the management of uncertainty, adaptability to variations, noise tolerance, adaptive classification, integration of expert knowledge, handling of ambiguous or intricate categories, and seamless integration compared to the other techniques. These advantages support enhanced precision and adaptability in the realm of image processing, empowering the meticulous and versatile manipulation of visual data. The process of edge detection, an essential cornerstone in the field of digital image processing, performs a pivotal role in the segmentation of foreground objects from the image background. So, it facilitates subsequent analysis and comprehension of the image's underlying structural properties through complex computational procedures. This complex process can be handled with fuzzy sets, where the degree of an element belonging to the set is represented by using membership functions. In the step of edge detection for the effective analysis and processing of visual data, it becomes necessary to introduce the generalization of fuzzy sets into image processing techniques when the fuzzy sets are not enough to process the data. The notion of Linear Diophantine fuzzy sets is a generalization of fuzzy sets where the use of reference parameters corresponds to membership and non-membership grades. The aim of this study is to give an application of linear Diophantine fuzzy sets to edge detection of images. For this aim, we conduct a comprehensive evaluation to ascertain the similarity values using the linear Diophantine fuzzy similarity measure by leveraging the gray normalized membership values associated with fundamental edge detection techniques. We also investigate whether there are specific parameter values at which these techniques exhibited resemblances to one another, thus we understand more accurately their interrelationships and potential applications. In the mentioned process, we obtain the results by using MATLAB which has the advantages of a powerful data processing structure.

^{*}Corresponding Author's E-mail: baldemir@aku.edu.tr

Keywords Image processing · Edge Detection · Linear Diophantine Fuzzy Sets · Similarity

- [1] Ejegwa P. A., Distance and similarity measures for Pythagorean fuzzy sets, Granular Computing, 5(2): 225-238, 2020.
- [2] Riaz M., & Hashmi M. R., Linear Diophantine fuzzy set and its applications towards multi-attribute decision-making problems, Journal of Intelligent & Fuzzy Systems, 37(4): 5417-5439, 2019.
- [3] Shanthi S. A., & Valarmathi R, Edge detection on fuzzy near sets, Materials Today: Proceedings, 51: 2504-2511, 2022.



ON SOME FIXED POINT THEOREMS

Vildan OZTURK^{1,*}

¹Department Of Mathematics, Faculty Of Science And Letters, University Of Ankara Haci Bayram Veli, Ankara, Turkey

ABSTRACT

Metric spaces are an important tool in the transition from classical analysis to modern analysis. Fixed point theory in metric spaces started with Banach contraction principle in 1922. According to this principle "(X, d) is a complete metric space and $f : X \to X$ is a self mapping. If there is a constant $0 \le k < 1$ such that the inequality $d(fx, fy) \le k.d(x, y)$ is provided for each for each $x, y \in X$, then f has unique fixed point".

In recent years, fixed point theory appeared as a fundamental subject in nonlinear analysis. It has useful application in Mathematics as well as other sciences such as computer science, engineering, economy and physics. In the literature, there are many generalisations of fixed point theorems in both metric and generalized metric spaces because of their usefulness. One of the generalized metric spaces defined in recently is F-metric spaces which have properties of nonnegativity, symmetry and a special form of triangular inequality.

In this study, a rational α - admissible type contraction principle will be defined in F-metric spaces as a generalisation of Banach contraction and fixed point theorems will be proved for this type contraction.

Keywords F-metric · fixed point · contraction principle

- [1] Banach S., Sur les opeerations dans les ensembles abstraits et leur application aux equations integrales, Fund. Math., 3: 133-181, 1922.
- [2] Jleli M. and Samet B., On a new generalization of metric spaces, J. Fixed Point Theory Appl., 20 (128), 2018.
- [3] Samet B., Vetro C. and Vetro P., Fixed point theorem for $\alpha \psi$ contractive type mappings, Nonlinear Anal., 75: 2154-2165, 2012.

^{*}Corresponding Author's E-mail: vildan.ozturk@hbv.edu.tr



AN ALGORITHM FOCUSED ON DETERMINING THE BEST PARAMETERIZATION TOOL FOR UNCERTAIN ENVIRONMENTS BASED ON DECISION MAKING

Tugbahan Simsekler DİZMAN^{1,*}, Naime DEMİRTAS², Orhan DALKİLİC²

¹Gaziantep University, Turkiye ²Mersin University, Turkiye

ABSTRACT

Decision-making problem in an uncertain environment is found prime importance in current periods of time. Innovative methods based on soft set theory with applications in many fields of the daily life of uncertain environments have already been developed and proposed. In this paper, we find out the best possible parameter from the given fixed set of parameters in any soft sets over the universe U, which is given for the solution of an uncertainty problem. Moreover, we construct an algorithm, which proceeds toward an application for a type of uncertainty problem. The paragon outcome is achieved in the scope of group work to compute the success value of the group. We hope that this research for the selection of the best possible parameter of a universal set in any soft set will be worthwhile to researchers working on problems having uncertainty in many features for further studies in this field.

Keywords soft set, best possible parameter, distance function, algorithm, decision making

- [1] Zadeh, L.A., Fuzzy set. Information and Control, 8(3), 1965.
- [2] Molodtsov, D., Soft set theory first results. Comput. Math. Appl., 37, 19-31, 1999.
- [3] Cekin, V., Aygunoglu A. and Aygun, H., A new approach in handling soft decision making problems. J. Nonlinear Sci. Appl., 9, 231-239, 2016.
- [4] Maji, P.K., Biswas, R. and Roy, A.R., Fuzzy soft set theory. Journal of Fuzzy Mathematics, 9(3), 2001.
- [5] Demirtas, N., Hussain, S. and Dalkilic, O. New approaches of inverse soft rough sets and their applications in a decision making problem. Journal of applied mathematics and informatics, 38(3-4), 335-349, 2020.

^{*}*Corresponding Author's E-mail: tsimsekler@hotmail.com*



ON SOME GAUSSIAN ORESME NUMBERS

Serpil HALICI¹, Elifcan SAYIN^{2,*}

¹*Pamukkale University, Department of Mathematics, Denizli, Turkey* ²*Pamukkale University, Department of Mathematics, Denizli, Turkey*

ABSTRACT

Sequences with recurrence relations are used in many branches of science such as mathematics, physics and engineering. The most well-known and studied sequence among these is Horadam sequence. This sequence is a generalization of many sequences and has an important place in the literature. New sequences can also be obtained from this sequence by changing the initial conditions. The most common sequences obtained by this method in the literature are Fibonacci sequence, Lucas sequence and Jacobstal sequence. The Fibonacci sequence, which has an important place among these sequences, has been studied by many authors. Horadam, who also worked on Fibonacci sequences, defined these sequences in complex space and discussed Gaussian Fibonacci sequences. A new sequence, which was defined by Nicole Oresme in the 14th century and called the Oresme sequence, is a special case of the Horadam sequence whose initial conditions are rational numbers. Subsequently, this was reviewed by many authors. In this study, we defined the Gaussian Oresme sequence using the Oresme sequence. We gave the Binet formula for Gaussian Oresme numbers by using the Binet formula of Oresme numbers. From here, we have obtained the recurrence relation and the generating function of this number sequence. We have given important identities of this sequence such as Cassini, Catalan, d'Ocagne's, Honsberger's and Vajda identities. Moreover, we defined the matrix of the Gaussian Oresme sequence and calculated the n - th power. We have given the finite sum formula for Gaussian Oresme numbers. We have shown the relationship of this sequence with the Gaussian Fibonacci Numbers.

Keywords Oresme Numbers · Gaussian Numbers · Reccurence Relations

- [1] Cerda-Morales, G. Oresme polynomials and their derivatives. arXiv preprint arXiv:1904.01165, 2019.
- [2] Cook, C. K. Some sums related to sums of Oresme numbers. In Applications of Fibonacci Numbers: Volume 9: Proceedings of The Tenth International Re-

^{*}Corresponding Author's E-mail: elifcan7898@gmail.com

search Conference on Fibonacci Numbers and Their Applications, Springer Netherlands, pp. 87-99, 2004.

- [3] Halici, S. and Sayin, E. On Some k- Oresme Hybrid Numbers. Utilitas Mathematica, 120, 1-11, 2023.
- [4] Horadam, A. F. Basic properties of a certain generalized sequence of numbers. The Fibonacci Quarterly, 3(3), 161-176, 1965.
- [5] Horadam, A. F. Oresme numbers. The Fibonacci Quarterly, 12(3), 267-271, 1974.
- [6] Oresme, N. Quaestiones super geometriam Euclidis, Vol. 3. Brill Archive, 1961.
- [7] Pethe, S. and Horadam, A. F. Generalised Gaussian Fibonacci numbers. Bulletin of the Australian Mathematical Society, 33(1), 37-48, 1986.
- [8] Sentürk, G. Y., Gürses, N. and Yüce, S. A New Look on Oresme Numbers: Dual-Generalized Complex Component Extension. In Conference Proceeding Science and Technology, Vol. 1, No. 1, pp. 254-265, 2018.



PEDAGOGICAL EXPERIENCE TO PROMOTE ACADEMIC SUCCESS: A CASE STUDY

Emília BIGOTTE^{1,*}, María José CÁCERES GARCÍA², Araceli QUEIRUGA-DIOS²

¹Instituto Superior de Engenharia de Coimbra (Portugal) ²Instituto Universitario de Física Fundamental y Matemáticas, Universidad de Salamanca (Spain)

ABSTRACT

Failure in the curricular units of Differential and Integral Calculus (CU-DIC) and Introduction to Programming (commonly referred to as CS1) are realities that teachers face in undergraduate courses in Computer Engineering. Having a solid foundation in mathematics is crucial for programming, and there are studies that demonstrate a correlation between programming proficiency and experience in mathematics. The CU-DIC plays a pivotal role in providing the theoretical foundation required for future professionals in fields like engineering and other exact sciences. As a result, these units are included in the majority of degree programs offered at various higher education institutions. The high failure and dropout rates in DIC have prompted the need to critically evaluate the methodologies and teaching styles, the learning environments created, and the assessment practices. It is essential to establish educational practices that empower students to become co-responsible for their learning process, fostering their academic success and meaningful comprehension. Successful students should actively engage in strategies to motivate themselves, shape their behavior, and facilitate learning. Teachers can play a pivotal role in enhancing outcomes, utilizing teaching strategies that address the weaknesses of the class or individual students, as well as implementing learning strategies that leverage students' strengths. At the Coimbra Institute of Engineering (ISEC), teachers have applied several strategies that allow reversing the results found in the CU-DIC: CU operating in alternative semesters, support centers for mathematics, formative assessment, or use mathematical software in classes, among others. However, the impact of applying each of these strategies may be related to the learning styles of each student and the attitude that each one has towards the difficulties encountered in integrating into the CU-DIC, namely, in basic and elementary concepts in mathematics. In view of all these facts, in the academic year 2022/2023, a pedagogical experiment was carried out that tried to link programming skills with CDI learning. This communication intends to describe this experience, as a case study,

^{*}Corresponding Author's E-mail: ebigotte@isec.pt

relating it to the results obtained in CU-DIC of the Informatics Engineering degree at ISEC.

Keywords curricular units · Differential and Integral Calculus · dropout rate

- [1] Bernardoni, S., Alcalá, M. R., and Alcala, M. R. (2009). "Ac 2009-2181: utilizing the Xo computer for undergraduate research and learning opportunities," in 2009 at the ASEE Annual Conference (Austin, TX).
- [2] Hervani, A., & Helms, M. M. (2004). Increasing creativity in economics: The service learning project. Journal of Education for Business, 79(5), 267-274.
- [3] Pazos, P., Cima, F., Kidd, J., Ringleb, S., Ayala, O., Gutierrez, K., & Kaipa, K. (2020). Enhancing teamwork skills through an engineering service-learning collaboration. In 2020 ASEE Virtual Annual Conference Content Access, Virtual Online.
- [4] Root, R., & Thorme, T. (2001). Community-based projects in applied statistics: Using service-learning to enhance student understanding. The American Statistician, 55(4), 326-331.
- [5] Salam, M., Awang Iskandar, D. N., Ibrahim, D. H. A., & Farooq, M. S. (2019). Service learning in higher education: A systematic literature review. Asia Pacific Education Review, 20, 573-593.
- [6] Stetten, N. E., Black, E. W., Edwards, M., Schaefer, N., & Blue, A. V. (2019). Interprofessional service learning experiences among health professional students: A systematic search and review of learning outcomes. Journal of Interprofessional Education & Practice, 15, 60-69.



ON A CLASS OF FOURTH ORDER RECURSIVE SEQUENCES

Gül Karadeniz GÖZERİ^{1,*}

¹ Istanbul University, Faculty of Science, Department of Mathematics

ABSTRACT

The concept of recursive sequences is one of the most attractive topics in Mathematics, especially in Number Theory. A recursive sequence is defined by a recurrence relation and its initial conditions. Recurrence relations enable us to find subsequent terms by using previous terms. Some of the most known recursive sequences that are defined by second order recurrence relations are Fibonacci, Lucas, Pell, and Pell-Lucas sequences. Apart from these sequences, the sequence of balancing numbers, which is one of the second order recursive sequences, has been studied by many authors recently. The terms of the sequence of balancing numbers are the solution of the following equations

$$1 + 2 + \dots + (n - 1) = (n + 1) + (n + 2) + \dots + (n + r)$$
(8)

By adding a fixed positive integer to the left side of this equation one can obtain the following equation that was introduced in [2]

$$1 + 2 + \dots + (n-1) + D = (n+1) + (n+2) + \dots + (n+r)$$
(9)

Solutions of these kinds of Diophantine equations which are the terms of certain fourth order recursive sequences are called subbalancing numbers.

In this study, we deal with subbalancing sequences that are defined by fourth order recurrence relations. Firstly, basic properties of these fourth order recursive sequences are presented. Then the relations between these fourth order recursive sequences and second order recursive sequences are investigated.

Keywords recursive sequences · Diophantine equations · subbalancing numbers

^{*}Corresponding Author's E-mail: gulkaradeniz@istanbul.edu.tr

- [1] Behera A., and Panda G.K., On the square roots of triangular numbers, Fibonacci Quarterly 37(2): 98-105, 1999.
- [2] Davala R.K, and Panda G.K., Subbalancing numbers, Mathematika, 34(1): 163-172, 2018.
- [3] Gözeri G.K., Ozkoç A., and Tekcan A., Some algebraic relations on balancing numbers, Util. Math. 103: 217-236, 2017.
- [4] Sarı S., Gözeri G.K, *b*₃-Subbalancing and *b*₃-Lucas subbalancing numbers, Filomat, 37(22): 7623-7639, 2023.
- [5] Tekcan A., Almost balancing, triangular and square triangular numbers, Notes on Number Theory and Discrete Mathematics 103: 217-236, 2017.



EFFECTS OF FEAR AND REFUGE USE BY PREY IN A PREDATION MODEL

Alejandro Rojas-PALMA^{1,*}, Eduardo González OLIVARES²

¹Departamento de Matemática, Física y Esatadística, Facultad de Ciencias Básicas, Universidad Católica del Maule, Talca, Chile.
²Pontificia Universidad Católica de Valparaíso, Chile.

ABSTRACT

When there is a species interaction in an ecological environment, the fear of predation risk may provide the prey species privileges by limiting their exposure to possible predators. this action could result in the use of refuges by the prey population.

In earlier papers, different predation models have been modified considering prey refuge use and assuming that the population acts with fear. But, a partial analysis of the dynamics of systems has been made.

One of the purposes of this work is to point out that some of these new systems with such modifications can have the same topological portrait in the phase plane as the original one. In this way, there are no dynamic differences between the behaviors of the solutions of the models.

To attain the results, we first provide the existence and stability of the equilibria of the model. Next, we study the impact of the fear effect on the model analytically and numerically. Also, we compare the system with and without fear effect. Some simulations are shown to reinforce the theoretical results.

Keywords Predator-prey · fear effect · refuge · stability

- [1] Bazykin, A. D. Nonlinear dynamics of interacting populations, World Scientific, 1998.
- [2] Collings, J. B., Bifurcations and stability analysis of a temperature-dependent mite predator-prey interaction model incorporating a prey refuge, Bulletin of Mathematical Biology 57, 63-76, 1995.
- [3] Fakhry, N. H., Naji, R. K., The Dynamics of a square root prey-predator model with fear. Iraqi J. Sci., 61, 139-146, 2020.

^{*}Corresponding Author's E-mail: amrojas@ucm.cl

IV. International Conference on Mathematics and Its Applications in Science and Engineering (ICMASE 2023)

- [4] González-Olivares, E., González-Yañez, B., Becerra-Klix, R. and Ramos-Jiliberto, R. Multiple stable states in a model based on predator-induced defenses, Ecol. Compl. 32 111-120, 2017.
- [5] He, M. and Li, Z. Stability of a fear effect predator-prey model with mutual interference or group defense, Journal of Biological Dynamics, VOL. 16, NO. 1, 480-498, 2022.



THE EFFECT OF COVARIANCE STRUCTURES ON PARAMETER ESTIMATION UNDER MULTIVARIATE LAPLACE DISTRIBUTION IN MANOVA

Müge BORAZAN^{1,*}, Serpil AKTAŞ ALTUNAY²

¹Department of Security Sciences, Gendarmerie and Coast Guard Academy, Ankara, Türkiye ²Department of Statistics, Hacettepe University, Ankara, Türkiye

ABSTRACT

Repeated measures are multiple responses from the same experimental unit over time or sequentially under different trial conditions. Designs for these kind of data are frequently used in many disciplines such as medicine, psychology, and education for two factors, indicating between-subjects and within-subjects. In particular, the dependency structure, which models the relationship between different measures taken from the same experimental unit, emerges as an issue that should be considered in the analysis of data with repeated measures. Univariate and multivariate analysis approaches are used in the analysis of repeated measures data. While it is necessary to provide the assumption of sphericity in univariate approaches, this issue is more flexible in multivariate approaches. In multivariate approaches such as MANOVA and Mixed Model methods, different covariance structures can be used to model the dependency structure resulting from repeated measurements. In this study, it is aimed to examine the effect of different covariance structures with a simulation study for MANOVA parameter estimations. The simulation study is performed to compare the results of parameter estimations for different covariance structures under Multivariate Laplace distribution using the EM algorithm. Results are compared with respect to Euclidean distances.

Keywords Covariance structure \cdot Repeated MANOVA \cdot Multivariate Laplace distribution \cdot EM algorithm

- [1] Arslan, O., An anlternative mutivariate skew Laplace distribution: properties and estimation, Stat Papers, 51: 865-887, 2010.
- [2] Brauer, S., A probabilistic expectation maximization algorithm for multivariate Laplacian mixtures, MSc, 2014.

^{*}Corresponding Author's E-mail: mugeborazan@yahoo.com

- [3] Davis, C.S., Statistical Methods for the Analysis of Repeated Measurements, Springer Texts in Statistics, 2002.
- [4] O'Brein, R. Kaiser, M.K., MANOVA method for analyzing repeated measures designs: An extensive primer, Psychological Bulletin, 97(2): 316-333, 1985.
- [5] Rudy, T.E., Kubinski, J., Boston, J.R., Multivariate analysis and repeated measurements: A primer, Journal of Critical Care, 7(1): 30-41, 1992.
- [6] Littell, R.C., Pendergast J., Natarajan, R., Modelling covariance structure in the analysis of repeated measures data, Statistics in Medicine, 19: 1793-1819, 2000.
- [7] Figueriredo, M.A.T., Lecture Notes on the EM Algorithm, 2008.
- [8] Lipka, A., Tyner, B., Repeated measures covariance structure, Statistical Consulting Service Purdue University West Lafayette, IN, USA, 2004.
- [9] Plungpongpun, K., Analysis of multivariate data using Kotz type distribution, PhD, 2003.
- [10] Wolfinger, R.D., Heterogeneous variance-covariance structures for repeated measures, Journal of Agricultural, Biological, and Environmental Statistics, 1(2): 205-230, 1996.



UNPREDICTABLE SOLUTIONS OF QUASILINEAR SYSTEMS WITH DISCONTINUOUS RIGHTHAND SIDES

Mehmet Onur FEN^{1,*}, Fatma Tokmak FEN²

¹Department of Mathematics, TED University, 06420, Ankara, Turkey ²Department of Mathematics, Gazi University, 06560, Ankara, Turkey

ABSTRACT

It is demonstrated that there exists a unique unpredictable solution of a quasilinear system whose righthand side is discontinuous such that it is constructed by means of an unpredictable sequence. The Lipschitz constant of the nonlinear term is required to be sufficiently small to achieve the main result. The stability of the unpredictable solution is investigated.

Keywords Unpredictable solution · Discontinuous righthand side · Quasilinear systems · Stability

- [1] Fen M.O. and Fen F., Quasilinear systems with unpredictable relay perturbations, Turk. J. Math., 46: 1369-1383, 2022.
- [2] Akhmet M. and Fen M.O., Unpredictable points and chaos, Commun. Nonlinear Sci. Numer. Simulat. 40: 1-5, 2016.
- [3] Akhmet M., Fen M.O., and Alejaily E.M., Dynamics with Chaos and Fractals, Springer, Cham, 2020.
- [4] Hale J.K., Ordinary Differential Equations, Krieger Publishing Company, Malabar, Florida, USA, 1980.
- [5] Bainov D. and Simeonov P., Integral Inequalities and Applications, Kluwer Academic Publishers, Dordrecht, 1992.

^{*}Corresponding Author's E-mail: onur.fen@tedu.edu.tr



UNPREDICTABILITY IN RETARDED SHUNTING INHIBITORY CELLULAR NEURAL NETWORKS

Fatma Tokmak FEN^{1,*}, Mehmet Onur FEN²

¹Department of Mathematics, Gazi University, 06560, Ankara, Turkey ²Department of Mathematics, TED University, 06420, Ankara, Turkey

ABSTRACT

In this study we investigate unpredictable oscillations occurring in a class of retarded shunting inhibitory cellular neural networks. Rectangular input currents are utilized in the model. The exponential stability of such oscillations is demonstrated, and the extension of unpredictability among coupled networks is discussed. Examples with computer simulations are presented.

Keywords Shunting inhibitory cellular neural networks · Rectangular input currents · Unpredictable oscillations

- [1] Fen M.O. and Tokmak Fen F., Unpredictable oscillations of SICNNs with delay, Neurocomputing, 464: 119-129, 2021.
- [2] Bouzerdoum A. and Pinter R.B, Shunting inhibitory cellular neural networks: Derivation and stability analysis, IEEE Trans. Circuits Syst. I, Fundam. Theory Appl., 40: 215-221, 1993.
- [3] Filippov A.F., Differential Equations with Discontinuous Righthand Sides: Control Systems, Springer, Berlin, 1988.
- [4] Huang X. and Cao J., Almost periodic solution of shunting inhibitory cellular neural networks with time-varying delay, Phys. Lett. A 314: 222-231, 2003.
- [5] Liu X., Exponential convergence of SICNNs with delays and oscillating coefficients in leakage terms, Neurocomputing, 168: 500-504, 2015.

^{*}Corresponding Author's E-mail: fatmatokmak@gazi.edu.tr



FORMS OF ASSESSMENT IN VIEW OF THE DEVELOPMENT OF MATHEMATICAL COMPETENCIES

Daniela RICHTARIKOVA^{1,*}

¹Faculty of Mechanical Engineering, Slovak University of Technology in Bratislava

ABSTRACT

During the past twenty years, the need to define the outcomes of education as Competences has been recognized in many countries. The European Parliament and the Council of the European Union acknowledged the mathematical competence in 2006 to be a key competence for everyday life [4] and its partial competencies were incorporated into national educational programs. The engineering tertiary educational bodies grouped around The European Society for Engineering Education (SEFI) Mathematics Special Interest Group (MSIG) adopted the concept of eight overlaying mathematical competencies introduced by Danish KOM project [2] in 2003 which were linked to the carefully specified core content, and formulated as the core content-related competencies defining learning outcomes in the third edition of "A Framework for Mathematics Curricula in Engineering Education" [1]. The importance of developing "mathematical competence" for forming of mathematical literacy is nowadays recognized across all continents, even though differing a little in partial competencies classification. Albeit research papers and case studies on methods and processes of developing particular competencies are relatively abundant, the assessment possibilities with respect to particular competencies are not so frequent subject of research.

In paper, we will identify appropriate forms of summative assessment, applicable in the higher engineering education following up on the results presented in the proceedings of the conference ICMASE 2020 on New Rules for Assessing Mathematical Competencies [3]. In addition, the special attention will be paid to mutual communication in a class, a phenomenon that was negatively affected to a large extent by the pandemic restrictions. We will introduce a discussion as a part of summative assessment, not only providing the space for evaluating the competencies, but more, as an aspect that essentially contributes to their cultivation. Furthermore, the strategy of deploying assessment forms will be discussed, taking into account the building of comprehensive Mathematical Competency in gradual continuous and permanent manner.

^{*}*Corresponding Author's E-mail: daniela.richtarikova@stuba.sk*

Keywords Mathematical Competencies \cdot Tertiary engineering education \cdot Assessment forms \cdot Discussion

- [1] Alpers, B. et al., A Framework for Mathematics Curricula in Engineering Education. SEFI, Brussels, 2013. ISBN: 978-2-87352-007-6.
- [2] Niss, M., Mathematical competencies and the learning of mathematics: The Danish KOM project. In A. Gagatsis, S. Papastravidis (Eds.), 3rd Mediterranean Conference on Mathematics Education, Athens, Greece: Hellenic Mathematical Society and Cyprus Mathematical Society, 115- 124, 2003.
- [3] Richtarikova, D., Mathematical Competency Oriented Assessment Rules Math Guides on Complex Numbers. In ICMASE 2020 proc., Salamanca University Press, 2020. https://doi.org/10.14201/0AQ0302
- [4] Recommendation of the European Parliament and of the Council of 18 December 2006 on key competences for lifelong learning (2006/962/EC), https://eur-lex.europa.eu/legal-content/EN/TXT/PDF/?uri = CELEX:32006H0962from=EN



ON DETERMINANTS AND NORMS OF CIRCULANT MATRICES WITH FIBONACCI QUATERNIONS

Seda YAMAÇ AKBIYIK^{1,*}, Serhat YILDIRIM², Fatih YILMAZ²

¹Department of Computer Engineering, Istanbul Gelisim University, Turkey ²Department of Mathematics, Ankara Hacı Bayram Veli University, Turkey

ABSTRACT

At this paper, we consider $\mathcal{T}_n := \operatorname{circ}(Q_1, Q_2, \ldots, Q_n)$ circulant matrices whose entries are the well-known Fibonacci quaternions Q_1, Q_2, \ldots, Q_n . Then, we compute determinants of \mathcal{T}_n by exploiting the set of orthogonal polynomial, Chebyshev polynomials of the second kind. Moreover, we obtain some kind of norms of these matrices.

Keywords Circulant matrix · Fibonacci quaternion · Determinant · Norm

- [1] K.G.Nalbant and S. Yüce, Some new properties of the real quaternion matrices and Matlab applications, Cumhuriyet Science Journal, 40, (2019).
- [2] Z. Al-Zahour, Some new linear representations of matrix quaternions with some applications, Journal of King Saud University-Science, 31, (2019).
- [3] Z. Ercan and S. Yüce, On properties on dual quaternions, European Journal of Pure and Applied Sciences, 4, (2011).
- [4] M. Jafari, M. Meral and Y. Yaylı, Matrix representation of dual quaternions, Gazi University Journal of Science, 26, (2013).
- [5] J.P.Ward, Quaternions and Cayley Numbers: algebra and applications, Dordrecht: Kluwer Academic Publishers, (1997). doi: 10.1007/978-94-011-5768-1.
- [6] M. Akbıyık, S. Yamaç Akbıyık, F. Yılmaz, The matrices of Pauli quaternions, their De Moivre's and Euler's formulas, International Journal of Geometric Methods in Modern Physics, Vol. 19, No. 11, 2022.
- [7] Tuglu, N., Kızılates, C. On the Norms of Some Special Matrices with the Harmonic Fibonacci Numbers. Gazi University Journal of Science, 28(3), 497–501, 2015.

^{*}Corresponding Author's E-mail: syamac@gelisim.edu.tr

- [8] M. Akbıyık, S. Yamaç Akbıyık, F. Yılmaz, On linear algebra of one type of symmetric matrices with harmonic Fibonacci entries, Notes on Number Theory and Discrete Mathematics, 2022, Volume 28, Number 3, 399–410 DOI: 10.7546/nntdm.2022.28.3.399-410.
- [9] S. Yamaç Akbıyık, M. Akbıyık, F. Yılmaz, One Type of Symmetric Matrix with Harmonic Pell Entries, Its Inversion, Permanents and Some Norms, Mathematics, 2021, 9(5), 539; https://doi.org/10.3390/math9050539
- [10] F. Zhang, *Matrix Theory, Basic Results and Techniques*, Springer, New York, 2011.
- [11] D. Bozkurt, C.M. da Fonseca, F. Yılmaz, The determinants of circulant and skew-circulant matrices with Tribonacci numbers, Mathematical Sciences And Applications E-Notes, Volume 2 No. 2 pp. 67–75 (2014).
- [12] E. Kırklar, F. Yılmaz, A General Formula for Determinants and Inverses of r-circulant Matrices with Third Order Recurrences, Mathematical Sciences and Applications E-Notes,7 (1) 1-8 (2019).
- [13] A. F. Horadam, Complex Fibonacci Numbers and Fibonacci Quaternions, Amer.Math. Monthly, 70(1963), 289,291.
- [14] D. Bozkurt, T.-Y. Tam, Determinants and Inverses of circulant matrices with Jacobsthal and Jacobsthal-Lucas numbers, Appl. Math. Comput. 219 (2012), no.2, 544-551.
- [15] P.J. Davis, Circulant Matrices, Wiley, NewYork, 1979.
- [16] C.M. da Fonseca, On the location of the eigenvalues of Jacobi matrices, Appl. Math. Lett. 19 (2006), no.11, 1168-1174.
- [17] S.-Q. Shen, J.-M. Cen, Y. Hao, On the determinants and inverses of circulant matrices with Fibonacci and Lucas numbers, Appl. Math. Comput. 217 (2011), no.23, 9790-9797.
- [18] D. Bozkurt, On the Determinants and Inverses of Circulant Matrices with a General Number Sequence, arXiv:1202.1068, 2012.
- [19] J. C. Mason, D. C. Hanscomb, Chebyshev Polynomials, CRC Press Company, 2003.
- [20] R. A. Horn, C. R. Johnson, Matrix Analysis, Cambridge University Press 1985.



G_2- frame formulae for Spatial Split Octonionic Curves

Mücahit AKBIYIK^{1,*}, Jeta ALO¹

¹Department of Mathematics, Istanbul Beykent University, Türkiye

ABSTRACT

In this presentation, we first define the vector product in Minkowski space \mathbb{R}^7_4 which is identified with the space of spatial split octonions. Then, we obtain the G_2 frame formulae for a seven dimensional Minkowski curve by using the spatial split octonions and the vector product.

Keywords Vector Product · Minkowski space · Spatial Split Octonions · Curvatures

- [1] M. Ohashi, G 2-Congruence theorem for curves in purely imaginary octonions and its application. Geom Dedicata 163, 1–17 (2013). https://doi.org/10.1007/s10711-012-9733-1
- [2] K. Bharathi, M. Nagaraj, Quaternion valued function of a real variable Serret–Frenet formulae, Indian J. Pure Appl. Math. 16 (1985) 741–756.
- [3] A.C. Coken and A. Tuna, On the quaternionic inclined curves in the semi-Euclidean space \mathbb{E}_2^4 , Appl. Math. Comput. 155 (2004), 373-389.
- [4] A. Dağdeviren, S. Yüce, Dual Quaternions and Dual Quaternionic Curves, Filomat 33:4 (2019), 1037–1046, https://doi.org/10.2298/FIL1904037D
- [5] J.P. Ward, Quaternions and Cayley Numbers Algebra and Applications, Kluwer Academic Publishers, London, 1997.
- [6] M. Gogberashvili, "Observable algebra," http://arxiv.org/abs/ hep-th/0212251.
- [7] M. Gogberashvili, "Octonionic geometry," Advances in Applied Clifford Algebras, vol. 15, no. 1, pp. 55–66, 2005.
- [8] M. Gogberashvili, "Octonionic electrodynamics," Journal of Physics A, vol. 39, no. 22, pp. 7099–7104, 2006.
- [9] M. Gogberashvili, "Octonionic version of Dirac equations," International Journal of Modern Physics A, vol. 21, no. 17, pp. 3513–3524, 2006.
- [10] M. Gogberashvili,O. Sakhelashvili1 "Geometrical Applications of splitoctonions," Advances in Mathematical Physics Volume 2015, Article ID 196708, 14 pages.

^{*}*Corresponding Author's E-mail: mucahitakbiyik@beykent.edu.tr*

- [11] O. Bektaş Split-type octonion matrix. Math Methods Appl Sci. 2018; 42(16).
- [12] K.Carmody, Circular and hyperbolic quaternions, octonions, and sedenions. Appl Math Comput. 1988;28:47-72.
- [13] M.Tanşlı, M.E. Kansu, S.Demir, A new approach to Lorentz invariance in electromagnetism with hyperbolic octonions. Eur Phys J Plus. 2012;127(69):1-12.
- [14] S. Demir, M. Tanşlı, Hyperbolic octonion formulation of the fluid maxwell equations. J Korean Phys Soc. 2016;68(5):616-623.
- [15] N. Candemir, M, Tanşlı, K. Özdas, S. Demir Hyperbolic octonionic Proca-Maxwell equations. Z Naturforsch. 2008;63:15-18.
- [16] S. Demir, M. Tanşlı, M. E. Kansu, Generalized hyperbolic octonion formulation for the fields of massive Dyons and Gravito-Dyons. Int J Theor Phys. 2016;52:3696-3711.
- [17] M. Akbıyık, On Powers and Roots of Split Octonions. Journal of Mathematics. 2023, 2314-4629.
- [18] A. Cariow, G. Cariowa, J. Knapiński Derivation of a low multiplicative complexity algorithm for multiplying hyperbolic octonions. 2015:1-15. arXiv:1502.06250.



NEW G-CLOSED SETS WITH RELATED TO AN IDEAL

Aynur Keskin KAYMAKÇI 1,*

¹Selcuk University, Faculty of Science, Department of Mathematics, Campus, 42031, Konya, TÜRKİYE

ABSTRACT

In the mathematical field of set theory, an ideal or set ideal is a partially ordered collection of sets that are considered to be "small" or "negligible". On the other hand the notion of generalized closed (briefly, g-closed) sets was defined by Levine. Then, several authors studied on this subject. In this paper, we introduce new g-closed sets and investigate of it's basic properties using ideal.

Keywords g-closed sets $\cdot I - g$ -closed sets $\cdot *g$ -closed sets, supra topology.

- [1] J. Dontchev, M. Ganster and T. Noiri, *Unified operation approach of generalized closed sets via topological ideals*, Math. Japon., **49**(1999), 395-401.
- [2] J. Dontchev, On Hausdorff spaces via topological ideals and I-irresolute functions, Annals of the New York Academy of Sciences, Papers on General Topology and Applications, 767 (1995), 28–38.
- [3] E. Hayashi, *Topologies defined by local properties*, Math. Ann., **156** (1964), 205-215.
- [4] D. Jankovic, T. R. Hamlett, *New topologies from old ideals*, Amer. Math. Monthly, **97** (1990), 295-310.
- [5] D. Jankovic, T. R. Hamlett, *Compatible extensions of ideals*, Boll. Un. Mat. Ital., **7**(6-B) (1992), 453-465.
- [6] A. Keskin, Ş. Yüksel, and T. Noiri, On I-Extremally Disconnected Spaces, Commun. Fac. Sci. Univ. of Ank. Series A1 Math. and Stat., 56(1) (2007), 33-40.
- [7] K. Kuratowski, Topologies, Vol. I, Warszawa, 1933.
- [8] N. Levine, *Generalized closed sets in topological spaces*, Rend. Circ. Mat. Palermo, **19** (1970), 89-96.
- [9] A. S. Mashhour, A. A. Allam, F. S. Mahmoud and F. H. Khedr, *On supra topological spaces*, Indian J. Pure Appl. Math., **14**(4) (1983), 502-510.

^{*}Corresponding Author's E-mail: akeskin@selcuk.edu.tr

IV. International Conference on Mathematics and Its Applications in Science and Engineering (ICMASE 2023)

- [10] P. Samuels, A topology formed from a given topological space, J. London Math. Soc., 2(10) (1975), 409-416.
- [11] R. Vaidyanathasvamy, *Set Topology*, Chelsa Publishing Company, New York, 1960.



ADAL CLASS OF SURVIVAL REGRESSION MODELS: AN APPLICATION TO RIGHT-CENSORED LIFETIME DATA SET

Abdisalam Hassan MUSE^{1,*}, Christophe CHESNEAU²

¹School of Postgraduate Studies and Research (SPGSR), Amoud University, Borama, 25263, Somalia ²Department of Mathematics, LMNO, CNRS-Université de Caen, Campus II, Science 3, 14032 Caen, France

ABSTRACT

One of the most crucial areas of statistics in biology and medicine is survival analysis. Additionally, full probabilistic modelling is essential in many real-world applications in various fields, including medical, engineering, economics, and social sciences, and the difficulties in survival models have changed significantly over the past few decades. The objective of this article is to introduce the "Adal" class, a new, general, tractable class for the widely used survival regression models. The Cox proportional hazard (PH) model was extended by the proposed class. Additionally, it specifies several new sub-models and includes numerous well-known models as sub-models, such as the proportional odds (PO), accelerated hazard (AH), accelerated odds (AO), and accelerated failure time (AFT) models. For the proposed class, we derive a number of probabilistic functions, and we establish a mathematical link with the survival regression models. For parameter estimation and inference, we used maximum likelihood technique. Finally, an actual dataset involving cancer patients with leukemia is thoroughly addressed to assess the versatility and utility of the proposed class.

Keywords Survival analysis; proportional hazard model; accelerated odds model; Adal class; accelerated failure time model; maximum likelihood estimation; censored data; accelerated hazard model.

- Muse, A. H., Mwalili, S., Ngesa, O., Chesneau, C., Alshanbari, H. M., & El-Bagoury, A. A. H. (2022). Amoud class for hazard-based and odds-based regression models: Application to oncology studies. Axioms, 11(11), 606.
- [2] Muse, A. H., Mwalili, S., Ngesa, O., Chesneau, C., Al-Bossly, A., & El-Morshedy, M. (2022). Bayesian and Frequentist Approaches for a Tractable Parametric General Class of Hazard-Based Regression Models: An Application to Oncology Data. Mathematics, 10(20), 3813.

^{*}*Corresponding Author's E-mail: abdisalam.hassan@amoud.edu.so*

- [3] Rubio, F. J., Remontet, L., Jewell, N. P., & Belot, A. (2019). On a general structure for hazard-based regression models: an application to population-based cancer research. Statistical methods in medical research, 28(8), 2404-2417.
- [4] Muse, A. H., Chesneau, C., Ngesa, O., & Mwalili, S. (2022). Flexible Parametric Accelerated Hazard Model: Simulation and Application to Censored Lifetime Data with Crossing Survival Curves. Mathematical and Computational Applications, 27(6), 104.
- [5] Rubio, F. J., Espindola, J. A., & Montoya, J. A. (2023). On near-redundancy and identifiability of parametric hazard regression models under censoring. arXiv preprint arXiv:2305.05641.
- [6] Muse, A. H., Ngesa, O., Mwalili, S., Alshanbari, H. M., & El-Bagoury, A. A. H. (2022). A flexible Bayesian parametric proportional hazard model: simulation and applications to right-censored healthcare data. Journal of Healthcare Engineering, 2022.
- [7] Abushal, T. A., Kumar, J., Muse, A. H., & Tolba, A. H. (2022). Estimation for Akshaya Failure Model with Competing Risks under Progressive Censoring Scheme with Analyzing of Thymic Lymphoma of Mice Application. Complexity, 2022.
- [8] Al-Aziz, S. N., Muse, A. H., Jawad, T. M., Sayed-Ahmed, N., Aldallal, R., & Yusuf, M. (2022). Bayesian inference in a generalized log-logistic proportional hazards model for the analysis of competing risk data: An application to stemcell transplanted patients data. Alexandria Engineering Journal, 61(12), 13035-13050.
- [9] Muse, A. H., Mwalili, S., Ngesa, O., & Chesneau, C. AmoudSurv: An R Package for Tractable Parametric Odds-Based Regression Models. 2022.
- [10] Charvat, H., & Belot, A. (2021). mexhaz: an R package for fitting flexible hazard-based regression models for overall and excess mortality with a random effect. Journal of Statistical Software, 98, 1-36.



CONNECTION OF BALANCING NUMBERS WITH SOLUTION OF A SYSTEM OF TWO HIGHER-ORDER DIFFERENCE EQUATIONS

Yacine HALIM^{1,*}, Amira KHELIFA²

¹Abdelhafid Boussouf University Center, Department of Mathematics and Computer Science, Mila, Algeria ²LMAM Laboratory, Mohamed Seddik Ben Yahia University, Jijel, Algeria

ABSTRACT

We provide some theoretical justifications pertaining to the representation for the solution of the system of the higher-order rational difference equations

$$x_{n+1} = \frac{1}{6 - y_{n-k}}, \quad y_{n+1} = \frac{1}{6 - x_{n-k}}, \qquad n, k \in \mathbb{N}_0.$$

where $\mathbb{N}_0 = \mathbb{N} \cup \{0\}$, and the initial conditions $x_{-k}, x_{-k+1}, \ldots, x_0, y_{-k}, y_{-k+1}, \ldots, y_0$ are non zero real numbers such that their solution is related to Balancing numbers. We also study the stability character and asymptotic behavior of this system.

Keywords General solution \cdot Balancing numbers \cdot stability \cdot System of difference equations.

- A.Behera and G. K. Panda, On the Rquare Roots of Triangular Nombers, Fibonacci. Quarterly, 37(2)(1999), 98-105.
- [2] G. K. Panda, Sequence balancing and cobalancing numbers, The Fibonacci Quarterly, 45(2007), 265-271.
- [3] Halim Y, Khelifa A and Berkal M. Bouchair, A.: On a solvable system of *p* difference equations of higher order. Periodica Mathematica Hungarica. 85, 109–127 (2022).
- [4] Halim Y, Berkal M and Khelifa A.: On a three-dimensional solvable system of difference equations. Turkish Journal of Mathematics. 44 (2), 1263–1288 (2020).

^{*}Corresponding Author's E-mail: halyacine@yahoo.fr



DELAMINATION RESISTANCE OF LAMINATED GLASS PLATES HAVING ETHYL VINYL ACETATE, POLYVINYL BUTYRAL AND SENTRYGLAS PLUS INTERLAYERS

Ebru DURAL^{1,2,*}

¹Department of Civil Engineering, Adnan Menderes University, 09100 Aydin, Turkey ²Department of Technical Programs, Kyrgyz-Turkish Manas University, 720044 Bishkek, Kyrgyz Republic

ABSTRACT

Laminated glass is manufactured by laminating two or more layers of glass together with a flexible interlayer at specified pressure and temperatures using an autoclave. The characteristic properties of laminated glass can be affected considerably by the used interlayers. Polyvinyl butyral, ethyl vinyl acetate and sentryglass are three main interlayers used by glass manufacturers. In order to select the appropriate interlayer parameters such as blast performance, availibity, cost, durability, optical property and manufacturing equipment should be considered. Usage of laminated glass is expanding due to its safety and security property as well as comfort and design. As a consequence of possess superiority of laminated glass for structural applications in various industries, they strengthen their position between building materials. Nevertheless delamination which may be result of manufacturing process and service is regarded the primary concern and most undesirable failure mode for the analysis of laminated glass. For this reason it is hot research area of composite industry. This paper presents the results of a study on the delamination strength of laminated glass with the mentioned three types of interlayers. A mathematical model is presented to analyze delamination behavior of laminated glass by using minimum potential energy theorem and applying variational method. Nonlinear equations which represent the laminated and delaminated regions of glass unit are obtained and then solved by applying finite difference method. Five nonlinear equations are written in matrix form. Solution of matrix system is obtained by using special matrix solvers and succesive over relaxation method is used to overcome the convergency problems.Deflection and stress values which represent mechanical behavior of unit are presented in figures. In order to carry out validation assumptions of model the finite element model was constituted. ABAQUS is used to perform the finite element analysis. The finite element results are in a good match with results of developed mathematical model.

^{*}Corresponding Author's E-mail: ebru.dural@manas.edu.kg

Keywords Laminated Glass · Delamination · Interlayer

- [1] Asik M.Z., Tezcan S., A mathematical model for the behavior of laminated glass beams, Comput Struct 83(21–22):1742–53, 2005.
- [2] Asik M.Z., Laminated glass plate: Revealing of nonlinear behavior, Comput Struct. 81:2659–71, 2003.
- [3] Dural E., Experimental and numerical treatment of delamination in laminated glass plate structures. J J Reinf Plast Comp 35(1):56–70, 2016.
- [4] Dural E., Analysis of delaminated glass beams subjected to different boundary conditions. Compos B 2016(101), 132–46, 2016.
- [5] Vedrtnam A., Experimental and simulation studies on delamination strength of laminated glass composites having polyvinyl butyral and ethyl vinyl acetate inter-layers of different critical thicknesses. Def Technol, 14:313–7, 2018.



A Symmetric Exploration of Dual Balancing and Cobalancing Numbers and Quaternions

Suleyman AYDİNYUZ^{1,*}

¹Pamukkale University, Faculty of Science, Department of Mathematics, Kinikli, Denizli, TURKEY

ABSTRACT

This paper introduces Dual Balancing and Dual Cobalancing numbers, along with their corresponding quaternions, to unveil the hidden symmetry of quaternions. We present Binet's formulas, generating functions, and numerous intriguing properties that contribute to a comprehensive understanding of these concepts. Additionally, we provide matrix representations that offer a fresh perspective on Dual Balancing and Dual Cobalancing quaternions. The findings of this study extend beyond theoretical applications and may have practical implications in various fields

Keywords Dual Balancing numbers \cdot Dual Cobalancing numbers \cdot Dual Balancing quaternions \cdot Dual Cobalancing quaternions \cdot Recurrence relations \cdot Binet's formulas \cdot Matrix representations

- [1] Behera, A., Panda, G.K., On the Square Roots of Triangular Numbers, The Fibonacci Quarterly, 37 (2)(1999), 98-105.
- [2] Panda, G.K., Some Fascinating Properties of Balancing Numbers, Proceedings of the Eleventh International Conference on Fibonacci Numbers and Their Applications, Cong. Numer, 194 (2009) 185-189
- [3] Ray, P. K., Panda, G. K., Balancing and Cobalancing Numbers. PhD Thesis, Department of Mathematics, National Institute of Technology, Rourkela, India, (2009)
- [4] Panda, G.K., Sequence Balancing and Cobalancing Numbers, The Fibonacci Quarterly, 45 (2007) 265-271.
- [5] Panda, G.K., Ray, P.K., Cobalancing Numbers and Cobalancer, Int. J. Math. Sci., No. 8 (2005) 1189-1200
- [6] Bérczes, A., Liptai, K., Pink, I., On Generalized Balancing Sequences, The Fibonacci Ouarterly, 48, (2) (2010) 121-128.

^{*}Corresponding Author's E-mail: aydinyuzsuleyman@gmail.com

IV. International Conference on Mathematics and Its Applications in Science and Engineering (ICMASE 2023)

- [7] Torunbalcı, Aydın, F., Yüce, S., Dual Pell Quaternions, Journal of Ultra Scientist of Physical Sciences, 28, (2016) 328-339.
- [8] Torunbalcı, Aydın, F., Yüce, S., Generalized Dual Pell Quaternions, Notes on Number Theory and Discrete Mathematics, 23 (4), (2017), 66-84.



FERMATEAN FUZZY TYPE A THREE-WAY CORRELATION COEFFICIENT

Murat KİRİŞCİ^{1,*}

¹Istanbul University-Cerrahpaşa, Istanbul, Türkiye

ABSTRACT

A trustworthy information is metric for assessing the association between Fermatean fuzzy sets (FFSs) is the correlation coefficient (CC). There are a few methods for figuring out the CC of FFSs. These previous methodologies, which are specified between [0, 1], simply evaluate the strength of the link between FFSs. This study, using the notions of variance and covariance, respectively, provides a three-way method for computing the correlation coefficient (CC) between FFSs. The strength of the association between the considered FFSs is demonstrated by this novel approach, which is defined inside the interval [1, 1] similar to classical statistics, and it identifies whether the FFSs are positively or negatively associated. The potential of inaccuracy owing to information leakage is reasonably mitigated by the suggested technique's inclusion of the three traditional FFSs parameters. To demonstrate the new technique's usefulness as an accurate information measure, several theoretical results will be used to validate it. The advantages of the new methods over comparable methods will be demonstrated using a few numerical examples. With the help of the novel approach, several decision-making issues involving pattern recognition and diagnostic medicine will be handled. Multi-attribute decisionmaking issues can be resolved using the three-way technique for determining the correlation coefficient between FFSs.

Keywords Fernatean fuzzy correlation coefficient \cdot Medical decision-making \cdot pattern recognition \cdot

- [1] Zadeh L.A., Fuzzy sets, Information and Control, 8: 338–353, 1965
- [2] Senapati T., Yager R.R., Fermatean fuzzy sets, J Ambient Intell Human Comput 11: 663–674, 2020.
- [3] Ejegwa P.A., Wen S., Feng Y., Zhang W., Liu J. A three-way Pyhagorean fuzzy correlation coefficient and its applications in deciding some real-life problems, Applied Intelligence 53: 226–237, 2023.

^{*}Corresponding Author's E-mail: mkirisci@hotmail.com

IV. International Conference on Mathematics and Its Applications in Science and Engineering (ICMASE 2023)

- [4] Kirisci, M., Correlation Coefficients of Fermatean Fuzzy Sets with a Medical Application, Journal of Mathematical Sciences and Modellings, 5: 16–23, 2022.
- [5] Kirisci, M., Fermatean Fuzzy Type Statistical Concepts with Medical Decision-Making Application, Fuzzy Optimization and Modeling Journal 4: 1–14, 2023



CHARACTERIZATION OF THE FINITE GROUPS

Oprea (Manolică) Georgia-ALINA^{1,*}

¹Ovidius University of Constanța, România

ABSTRACT

In this article, I shall present the definitions of groups, subgroups, the finite groups, The Lagrange's Theorem which tell us that the order of the subgroup H is the divisor of the order of the group G. This Theorem give us the possibility to find examples of subgroups of the finite groups. For example, the groups of order 4 has two subgroups: the cyclic group: $C_4 = \{1, z, z_2, z_3\}$ and Klein group.

Let G be a group of order 4. We assume that there is an element $x \in G$ with $x^2 \neq 1$. We can't have that $x^3 = 1$ because, in this case, $\{1, x, x^2\}$ would be a subgroup of order 3 of G, contrary to Lagrange's Theorem.

Thus, $x^3 \neq 1$ and obvious $x^3 \neq x$, $x^3 \neq x^2$. This shows that $G = \{1, x, x^2, x^3\} = \langle x \rangle$, so G is a cyclic group.

We now assume that for any element $x \in G$ with $x^2 = 1$. Let $x, y \in G$, $x \neq 1$, $y \neq 1$ and $x \neq y$.

- If $xy = x \implies y = 1$, but $y \neq 1$.
- If $xy = y \implies x = 1$, but $x \neq 1$.

• If xy = 1, we have $x = x1 = xy^2 = xyy = 1y = y$, but $x \neq y$.

So there is also the element xy. Now $G = \{1, x, y, xy\}$. From $(xy)^2 = 1$, we have (xy)(xy) = 1. Also, $(xy)(xy)^{-1} = 1$. Therefore, $xy = (xy)^{-1}$. Then,

$$yx = (xy)^{-1} = xy.$$

We have the relations $x^2 = 1$, $y^2 = 1$ and xy = yx, which shows us that the multiplication table of G coincides with the multiplication table of the dihedral group D_2 . It is defined as the symmetry group of a rectangle that is not square. Noting σ and τ symmetries in relation to the two symmetry axes of the rectangle, $\sigma \circ \tau = \tau \circ \sigma$ is the symmetry with respect to the center of the rectangle.

Then $D_2 = \{1, \sigma, \tau, \sigma \circ \tau\}$ with $\sigma^2 = 1$, $\tau^2 = 1$, $\sigma \circ \tau = \tau \circ \sigma$. This is usually called the Klein group (it is the smallest group that is not a cyclic group).

 $G \simeq C_4$, because they are cyclic groups with the same order, where $C_4 = \{z \in \mathbb{C} | z^4 = 1\}$. In other words, $C_4 = \{1, z, z^2, z^3\}$.

Using the same reasoning, the groups of order 6 has also two subgroups: $S_3 = \{1, \sigma, \sigma^2, \tau, \sigma \circ \tau, \sigma^2 \circ \tau\}$, it can be realized as the group of rotations and reflections of an equilateral triangle, and $C_6 = \{z \in \mathbb{C} | z^6 = 1\}$. Also, the groups of order 8 can be:

$$G \simeq \mathbb{Z}_8; \quad G \simeq \mathbb{Z}_4 \times \mathbb{Z}_2 \quad G \simeq \mathbb{Z}_2 \times \mathbb{Z}_2 \times \mathbb{Z}_2;$$

 $G \simeq D_8 \quad G \simeq \mathbf{Q},$

where the dihedral group D_8 is the symmetry group of the square and the quaternion group **Q** has the same order as the dihedral group D_8 , but a different structure, as shown by their Cayley table. In this two cases, the group G is not abelian.

Keywords Groups · Subgroups · Finite groups · Lagrange's Theorem

- [1] C. Năstăsescu, C. Niță, C. Vraciu: Bazele algebrei, Vol I, Editura Academiei Republicii Socialiste România, București, 1986
- [2] I. Purdea, C. Pelea: Probleme de algebra, Editura Eikon, 2007
Participant List

MIGUEL ÁNGEL GONZÁLEZ DE LA TORRE, (SPAIN), INVITED SPEAKER TOMOHIRO SOGABE, (JAPAN), INVITED SPEAKER ÁNGEL MARTÍN DEL REY, (SPAIN), INVITED SPEAKER NECHIFOR ANA-GABRIELA, (ROMANIA), ORAL PRESENTATION **BAIAS ANDREEA-ELENA, (ROMANIA), ORAL PRESENTATION** DONG LIANG, (CANADA), ORAL PRESENTATION BENGISEN PEKMEN GERIDÖNMEZ, (TÜRKIYE), ORAL PRESENTATION EMEL SAVKU, (NORWAY), ORAL PRESENTATION BAHADDIN SINSOYSAL, (TÜRKIYE), ORAL PRESENTATION HALA AHMED EL-SAKA, (EGYPT), LISTENER ELEN SPREAFICO, (BRAZIL), ORAL PRESENTATION SEDA YAMAÇ AKBIYIK, (TÜRKIYE), ORAL PRESENTATION RAQUEL CABALLERO-ÁGUILA, (SPAIN), ORAL PRESENTATION JOSÉ CHIMPANZO, (ANGOLA), ORAL PRESENTATION AYBÜKE ERTAŞ, (TÜRKIYE), ORAL PRESENTATION M. SALAH DAOUSSA HAGGAR, (CHAD), ORAL PRESENTATION M. ADAM ISHAG, (KENYA), ORAL PRESENTATION SAMET ARPACI, (TÜRKIYE), ORAL PRESENTATION ABDISALAM HASSAN MUSE, (SOMALIA), ORAL PRESENTATION ANGEL MARTIN DEL REY, (SPAIN), ORAL PRESENTATION YULII SHIKHMURZAEV, (UNITED KINGDOM), ORAL PRESENTATION ION MIERLUS-MAZILU, (ROMANIA), ORAL PRESENTATION DÉTHIÉ DIONE, (SENEGAL), ORAL PRESENTATION TOMOHIRO SOGABE, (JAPAN), ORAL PRESENTATION MUSTAPHA RACHIDI, (BRAZIL), ORAL PRESENTATION REGINA DE ALMEIDA, (PORTUGAL), ORAL PRESENTATION MUSTAFA ÖZKAN, (TÜRKIYE), LISTENER

MÜCAHIT AKBIYIK, (TÜRKIYE), ORAL PRESENTATION MIGUEL A. GONZALEZ-TORRE, (SPAIN), ORAL PRESENTATION ION MIERLUS-MAZILU, (ROMANIA), ORAL PRESENTATION HALIME ALTUNTAŞ, (TÜRKIYE), ORAL PRESENTATION ARACELI QUEIRUGA-DIOS, (SPAIN), ORAL PRESENTATION PEGAH MUTLU, (TÜRKIYE), ORAL PRESENTATION MEHMET ÜNLÜ, (TÜRKIYE), ORAL PRESENTATION DANIELA RICHTARIKOVA, (SLOVAKIA), ORAL PRESENTATION GEORGIA-ALINA MANOLICĂ, (ROMANIA), ORAL PRESENTATION SERHAT YILDIRIM, (TÜRKIYE), LISTENER VILDAN ÖZTÜRK, (TÜRKIYE), ORAL PRESENTATION OKTAY PASHAEV, (TÜRKIYE), ORAL PRESENTATION ERKAN ÇIMEN, (TÜRKIYE), ORAL PRESENTATION TAHIR MANZOOR, (INDIA), ORAL PRESENTATION ECE GÜLŞAH ÇOLAK, (TÜRKIYE), ORAL PRESENTATION **ŞEVKET UNCU, (TÜRKIYE), ORAL PRESENTATION** UFUK ÖZTÜRK, (TÜRKIYE), ORAL PRESENTATION ALI İHSAN KOÇ, (TÜRKIYE), ORAL PRESENTATION CRISTINA M.R. CARIDADE, (PORTUGAL), ORAL PRESENTATION SÜLEYMAN AYDINYÜZ, (TÜRKIYE), ORAL PRESENTATION HALIM YACINE, (ALGERIA), ORAL PRESENTATION DEOLINDA M. RASTEIRO, (PORTUGAL), ORAL PRESENTATION ELIF GÜNER, (TÜRKIYE), ORAL PRESENTATION MAYA STOIMENOVA-MINOVA, (BULGARIA), ORAL PRESENTATION FERIDE ÇETIN, (TÜRKIYE), ORAL PRESENTATION BAŞAK ALDEMIR, (TÜRKIYE), ORAL PRESENTATION MURAT KIRIŞÇI, (TÜRKIYE), ORAL PRESENTATION MÜGE BORAZAN, (TÜRKIYE), ORAL PRESENTATION TUGBA HAN ŞIMŞEKLER DIZMAN, (TÜRKIYE), ORAL PRESENTATION

IV. International Conference on Mathematics and Its Applications in Science and Engineering (ICMASE 2023)

ELIFCAN SAYIN, (TÜRKIYE), ORAL PRESENTATION MARIA EMÍLIA BIGOTTE DE ALMEIDA, (PORTUGAL), ORAL PRESENTATION GÜL KARADENIZ GÖZERI, (TÜRKIYE), ORAL PRESENTATION EBRU DURAL, (TÜRKIYE), ORAL PRESENTATION ALEJANDRO ROJAS-PALMA, (CHILE), ORAL PRESENTATION FATMA TOKMAK FEN, (TÜRKIYE), ORAL PRESENTATION MEHMET ONUR FEN, (TÜRKIYE), ORAL PRESENTATION AYNUR KESKIN KAYMAKÇI, (TÜRKIYE), ORAL PRESENTATION